IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

NATALIE M GRIDER, M D. and
KUTZTOMN FAM LY MEDI CI NE, P.C.,

Plaintiffs

V.

KEYSTONE HEALTH PLAN

CENTRAL, | NC.
H GHMARK, | NC.
JOHN S. BROUSE

CAPI TAL BLUE CRGCSS,

JAMES M MEAD
JOSEPH PFI STER

Def endant s

and

STEVENS & LEE

DANI EL B. HUYETT
JEFFREY D. BUKOWSKI
HANGLEY, ARONCHI CK, SEGAL &

PUDLI N, and

STRADLEY, RONON, STEVENS & YOUNG

Respondent s

NOW

Gvil Action
No. 2001- CVv- 05641

and

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
P. C )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

ORDER

this 28'" day of Septenber, 2007, upon

consi deration of the foll ow ng docunents:

1. Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for
Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37
of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and O her
Provi si ons of Law, which notion was filed on
March 22, 2006;

2. Plaintiffs’ Menorandum of Law in Support
of Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for
Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37
of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, which
menor andum was filed on March 22, 2007;



3. Plaintiff’s Conbi ned Mdtion and
Menor andum for Sanctions and Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt
Under Rule 37 of the Federal Rules of Cvil
Procedure and O her Provisions of Law for
Def endants’ Fl agrant Di sobedi ence of This Court’s
April 26, 2004 Order Prohibiting the Redaction of
Di scovery Docunents, which conbi ned notion and
menor andum was filed on Decenber 19, 2006

upon consi deration of the 33 additional subm ssions of the
parties and respondents, which are enunerated in Attachnent | to
this Oder, which is incorporated here, including answers,
responses, |egal nenoranda, briefs, joint proposed findings of
fact and conclusions of |law, and proposed findings of fact and
conclusions of law, after hearing held January 22, 23, 24, 25, 26
and February 6, 7, 8 and 9, 2007; after closing argunents; upon
consideration of the testinony and evi dence adduced at the

heari ng; and based upon the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law,
and reasons expressed, in the acconpanying Opi nion,

IT IS ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and

for Findings of Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the
Federal Rules of Cvil Procedure and Other Provisions of Lawis
granted in part, and denied in part.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff’s Conbi ned Mtion

and Menorandum for Sanctions and Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt Under
Rul e 37 of the Federal Rules of Cvil Procedure and O her

Provi sions of Law for Defendants’ Flagrant Di sobedience of This



Court’s April 26, 2004 Order Prohibiting the Redaction of
Di scovery Docunents is granted in part, and denied in part.

T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that plaintiffs’ notion for

sanctions based upon Rule 26(g)(2)(A and (B) of the Federal

Rul es of Civil Procedure is granted agai nst Defendants Keystone
Health Plan Central, Inc., Capital Blue Cross, H ghmark, Inc. and
their respective counsel, including John S. Summers, Esquire, the
law firm of Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin, Jeffrey D.
Bukowski, Esquire and the law firmof Stevens & Lee, P.C ,

Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire and the law firmof Stradley, Ronon,
St evens & Young.

T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that plaintiffs’ notion for

sanctions based upon Rule 37(c)(1) of the Federal Rules of G vil
Procedure is granted agai nst Defendants Keystone Health Pl an
Central, Inc., Capital Blue Cross, H ghmark, Inc., John S.
Summers, Esquire, the law firm of Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal &
Pudlin, Jeffrey D. Bukowski, Esquire, Daniel B. Huyett, and the
law firmof Stevens & Lee, P.C., Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire and
the law firmof Stradl ey, Ronon, Stevens & Young.

T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that plaintiffs’ notion for

sanctions based upon 28 U.S.C. § 1927 and Rule 83.6.1 of the
Rul es of Civil Procedure of the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of Pennsylvania is granted agai nst John S.

Summers, Esquire, the law firm of Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal &



Pudlin, Daniel B. Huyett, Esquire, Jeffrey D. Bukowski, Esquire,
the law firmof Stevens & Lee, P.C., Sandra A. Grifalco,
Esquire, and the law firmof Stradl ey, Ronon, Stevens & Young.

| T IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in all other respects,

plaintiffs’ two notions for sanctions are deni ed.

| T IS FURTHER ORDERED that the foll owi ng sanctions are

i nposed upon each attorney and party sanctioned herein:

(1) paynent of plaintiffs reasonable attorneys’
fees for the filing of the within two sanctions
notions, preparation for hearing and all in-court
time during the hearing, together with any costs
incurred for prosecution of these two notions;

(2) paynent to plaintiffs for all suns paid by

plaintiffs as fees to Special Discovery Mster

Karol yn Vreel and Blune for her services in this
case; and

(3) paynent of plaintiffs reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs incurred in preparing for, and
participating in, all proceedi ngs before Speci al
Di scovery Master Bl une.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that the parties and counsel

sanctioned herein shall each pay the foll ow ng percentages of the
total fees and costs awarded to plaintiffs herein:
A. Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc. — 25%
B. Capital Blue Cross - 25%
C. John S. Sumrers, Esquire and the law firm of
Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin, jointly and
severally - 25%

D. H ghmark, Inc. - 10%



E. Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire and the law firm
of Stradl ey, Ronon, Stevens & Young, jointly and
severally - 10% and

F. Daniel B. Huyett, Esquire, Jeffrey D.

Bukowski, Esquire and the law firm of Stevens &
Lee, P.C., jointly and severally - 5%

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that plaintiffs shall have unti

on or before Cctober 30, 2006 to file a petition for the
attorneys fees and costs awarded herein, together with their tine
records, including a detail ed explanation of the hours expended,
the dates of the services perforned, the task conpl eted, the
hourly rate for each attorney performng work on this matter, and
an item zed statenment of costs and expenses incurred in

connection with these sanctions notions.

BY THE COURT:

[ s/ Janmes Knoll Gardner
Janes Knoll Gardner
United States District Judge




IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

NATALIE M GRIDER, M D. and
KUTZTOMN FAM LY MEDI CI NE, P.C.,

Plaintiffs
V.

KEYSTONE HEALTH PLAN
CENTRAL, | NC.,

H GHVARK, | NC.,

JOHN S. BROUSE,

CAPI TAL BLUE CRGCSS,
JAMES M MEAD, and
JOSEPH PFI STER,

Def endant s
and
STEVENS & LEE, P.C.
DANI EL B. HUYETT
JEFFREY D. BUKOWBKI
HANGLEY, ARONCHI CK, SEGAL &

PUDLI N, and
STRADLEY, RONON, STEVENS & YOUNG

Respondent s

APPEARANCES:

KENNETH A. JACOBSEN, ESQUI RE

FRANCI S J. FARI NA, ESQUI RE

JOSEPH A. O KEEFE, ESQUI RE
On behal f of Plaintiffs

M CHAEL L. MARTI NEZ, ESQUI RE
DANI EL T. CAMPBELL, ESQUI RE

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

MALCOLM J. CGRCSS, ESQUI RE

KI MBERLY G KRUPKA, ESQUI RE
On behal f of Defendants Capital

Gvil Action
No. 2001- CVv- 05641

Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc.,

and Joseph Pfister

- Vi -

Bl ue Cross

Janmes M Mead



SANDRA A. G RI FALCO, ESQUI RE
WLLIAMT. MANDI A, ESQU RE
JEREMY D. FEI NSTEIN, ESQUI RE

On behal f of Defendants

H ghmark, Inc. and John S. Brouse

PATRI CK J. O CONNOR, ESQUI RE
THOMAS B. FI DDLER, ESQUI RE
MATTHEW J. SI EGEL, ESQUI RE
MALCOLM J. GRGCSS, ESQUI RE
On behal f of Defendant James M Mead

BARBARA W NATHER, ESQUI RE

CHRI STOPHER J. HUBER, ESQUI RE
On behal f of Respondents Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal
and Pudlin

LAWRENCE J. FOX, ESQUI RE

ELI ZABETH Y. M CUSKEY, ESQUI RE
On behal f of Respondents Stevens & Lee, Daniel B.
Huyett and Jeffrey D. Bukowski

M CHAEL D. O MARA, ESQUI RE

On behal f of Respondent Stradley, Ronon,
St evens and Young

OP1 NI ON

JAMES KNOLL GARDNER,
United States District Judge

This matter is before the court on two separate
sanctions notions filed by plaintiffs. Plaintiffs’ Mtion for
Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and

37 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and O her Provisions
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of Law was filed on March 22, 2006.' Plaintiff’s Conbined Mtion
and Menorandum for Sanctions and Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt Under
Rule 37 of the Federal Rules of G vil Procedure and O her
Provi sions of Law for Defendants’ Flagrant Di sobedi ence of This
Court’s April 26, 2004 Order Prohibiting the Redaction of
Di scovery Docunents was filed Decenber 19, 2006.°2

A sanctions hearing was conducted by the undersigned on
January 22, 23, 24, 25, 26 and February 6, 7, 8 and 9, 2007.
Plaintiffs presented the testinony of ten wi tnesses and 161
exhibits. Defendants H ghmark, Inc. and John S. Brouse presented
two witnesses and 54 exhibits. Defendants Capital Blue Cross,
Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc., Janes M Mead and Joseph

Pfister presented two witnesses and 20 exhibits. Respondents

! The Answer of Defendants Capital Blue Cross and Janes M Mead to
Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt Under Rules 11,
26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and O her Provisions of
Law, was filed on April 10, 2006.

The Response in Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and
for Findings of Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rules of
Cvil Procedure and Other Provisions of Law was filed on behalf of defendants
H ghmark, Inc. and John S. Brouse on April 10, 2006.

Def endant s Keystone Health Plan Central, Joseph Pfister and Their
Counsel s’ Answer to Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for Findings of
Contenmpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
and Gt her Provisions of Law was filed on April 10, 2006.

2 The Response of Defendants H ghmark Inc. and John S. Brouse in
Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Conbined Mbtion and Menorandum for Sanctions and for
Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt Under Rule 37 of the Federal Rules of G vil Procedure and
O her Provisions of Law for Defendants’ Flagrant Di sobedi ence of This Court’s
April 26, 2004 Order Prohibiting the Redaction of Discovery Documents was
filed on January 2, 2007.

The Opposition of Capital and Keystone Defendants to Plaintiffs’
Motion for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt was filed on behal f of
def endants Capital Blue Cross, Janes M Mead, Keystone Health Plan Central,
Inc. and Joseph Pfister on January 2, 2007.
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Dani el B. Huyett, Esquire, Jeffrey D. Bukowski, Esquire and the
law firmof Stevens & Lee, P.C. presented one witness and 43
exhi bits. Respondent Stradley, Ronon, Stevens & Young presented
no w tnesses and six exhibits. Finally, respondent Hangl ey
Aronchi ck, Segal & Pudlin presented one witness and 22 exhi bits.

At the conclusion of the hearing, | took the matter
under advisenent. Thereafter, | reviewed the hearing testinony
and exhibits and researched the matter. For the foll ow ng
reasons | now grant in part, and deny in part, plaintiffs’ two
sanctions noti ons.

SUMVARY OF DECI SI ON

Specifically, | conclude that Defendants Keystone
Health Plan Central, Inc., Capital Blue Cross, H ghmark, Inc. and
their respective counsel, including John S. Summers, Esquire, the
law firm of Hangl ey Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin, Jeffrey D.
Bukowski, Esquire and the law firmof Stevens & Lee, P.C ,
Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire and the law firm of Stradley, Ronon,
Stevens & Young all violated Rule 26(g)(2)(A) and (B) of the
Federal Rules of Cvil Procedure.

Def endant s Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc., Capital
Blue Cross, H ghmark, Inc. all violated Rule 37(c)(1) of the
Federal Rules of Cvil Procedure.

Attorney Summers, the law firm of Hangl ey Aronchi ck,

Segal & Pudlin, Attorneys Huyett and Bukowski, the law firm of



Stevens & Lee, Attorney Grifalco and the law firmof Stradley,
Ronon, Stevens & Young all violated 28 U . S.C. 8§ 1927 and

Rule 83.6.1 of the Rules of Civil Procedure of the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania by

unr easonably and vexatiously nultiplying the proceedings in this
case.

In all other respects, plaintiffs’ two notions for
sanctions are deni ed.

Based upon the violations set forth above, | inpose the
foll ow ng sanctions upon each attorney and party sancti oned:

(1) paynent of plaintiffs’ reasonable attorneys’
fees for the filing of the within two sanctions
notions, preparation for hearing and all in-court
time during the hearing, together with any costs
incurred for prosecution of these two notions;
(2) paynment to plaintiffs for all suns paid by
plaintiffs as fees to Special Discovery Mster
Karol yn Vreel and Blune for her services in this
case; and

(3) paynent of plaintiffs’ reasonabl e attorneys’
fees and costs incurred in preparing for, and
participating in, all proceedi ngs before Special
Di scovery Master Bl une.

The parties and counsel sanctioned shall each pay the
foll ow ng percentages of the total fees and costs awarded to
plaintiffs:

A.  Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc. — 25%

B. Capital Blue Cross - 25%



C. John S. Summrers, Esquire and the law firm of

Hangl ey Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin, jointly and

severally - 25%

D. H ghmark, Inc. - 10%

E. Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire and the law firm

of Stradl ey, Ronon, Stevens & Young, jointly and

severally - 10% and

F. Daniel B. Huyett, Esquire, Jeffrey D.

Bukowski, Esquire and the law firm of Stevens &

Lee, P.C., jointly and severally - 5%

Plaintiffs shall have until on or before October 30,

2006 to file a petition for attorneys fees and costs, together
with their tinme records, including a detail ed explanation of the
hours expended, the dates of the services perfornmed, the task
conpleted, the hourly rate for each attorney perform ng work on
this matter, and an item zed statenent of costs and expenses

incurred in connection with these sanctions noti ons.

JURI SDI CT1 ON

Jurisdiction is based upon federal question
jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U S.C. 88 1331 and 1441(b). The
court has supplenental jurisdiction over plaintiffs’ pendent
state law clains. See 28 U S.C. 8§ 1367. Venue is proper
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8 1391(b) because a substantial nunber of
the events giving rise to plaintiffs’ clains allegedly occurred

inthis judicial district.

-Xi -



PARTI ES

Plaintiff Natalie M Gider, MD. is a famly
practitioner and President of plaintiff Kutztown Fam |y Medi cine,
P.C (“Kutztown”). Plaintiffs and their affiliates provide
medi cal services to about 4,000 patients who are insured by
def endant Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc. (“Keystone”).

Keystone is a Health Mai ntenance Organization (“HVO)
organi zed under the Pennsyl vani a Heal th Mai nt enance O gani zati on
Act.® Defendant Joseph Pfister is the forner Chief Executive
O ficer of Keystone.

Def endant H ghmark, Inc., (“H ghmark”) fornmerly known
as Pennsylvania Blue Shield, is an insurance conpany which during
the entire class period (January 1, 1996 through COctober 5, 2001)
was a 50% owner of Keystone. Defendant John S. Brouse is the
former Chief Executive Oficer of H ghmark.

Def endant Capital Blue Cross (“Capital”) is an
i nsurance conpany which during the entire class period was a 50%
owner of Keystone. Defendant Janes M Mead is the fornmer Chief
Executive Oficer of Capital. In 2003 Capital purchased
H ghmark’s ownership interest in Keystone. Keystone is now a
whol | y- owned subsidiary of Capital.

Respondents Daniel B. Huyett, Esquire, Jeffrey D.

Bukowski, Esquire and the law firmof Stevens & Lee, P.C. are

3 Act of Decenber 29, 1972, P.L. 1701, No. 364, 88 1-17, as anended,
40 P.S. 88 1551-1567.
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former counsel for defendants Capital and Mead. Attorney Huyett
was | ead counsel for Capital and Mead. Attorneys Huyett and
Bukowski withdrew their appearances on Cctober 3, 2006.*
Respondent | aw firm Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal and
Pudlin are the forner counsel for defendants Keystone and
Pfister. John S. Summers, Esquire was | ead counsel for Keystone
and Pfister. Attorney Sunmers and the rest of the attorneys at
Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal and Pudlin withdrew their appearances
on July 3, 2006.°
Respondent law firm Stradl ey, Ronon, Stevens and Young
has represented defendants H ghmark, Inc and John S. Brouse
t hroughout this litigation. Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire was
| ead counsel for defendants H ghmark and Brouse fromthe

inception of this case until April 4, 2007.°

PROCEDURAL HI STORY

On Cctober 5, 2001 plaintiffs filed their Conplaint in
the Court of Common Pl eas of Phil adel phia County. Defendants

removed the action to this court on Novenber 7, 2001.’ By O der

4 See Docket Entry 573.
5 See Docket Entry 539.
6 See Docket Entry 736. On April 4, 2007 Mary J. Hackett, Esquire

becane | ead counsel for defendants Hi ghmark and Brouse.

7 This action was originally assigned to our coll eague United States
District Judge Anita B. Brody. The case was transferred fromthe docket of
District Judge Brody to the docket of Senior District Judge Thomas N. O Neill,
Jr., on Novenber 16, 2001 and fromthe docket of Senior Judge O Neill to the
under si gned on Decenber 19, 2002.
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and Qpi nion of the undersigned dated Septenber 18, 2003,
granted in part and denied in part Defendants’ Mtion to Dism sSs,
whi ch notion was filed January 23, 2002.

Specifically, |I denied defendants’ notion to dismss

based upon Pegramyv. Herdrich,® the MCarran-Ferguson Act® and

the state-action-immunity doctrine. Defendants’ notion to

dism ss Count | of plaintiffs’ Conplaint alleging conspiracy to
commt RICO violations was denied. Defendants’ notion to dism ss
Count 11 alleging aiding and abetting Rl CO viol ati ons was
granted. Defendants’ notion to dismss Count |1l alleging
illegal investnent of racketeering proceeds under 18 U. S. C

8§ 1962(a) was granted without prejudice to file an anended
conpl ai nt.

I n addi tion, defendants’ notion to dism ss Count |V was
granted in part and denied in part relating to all egations of
fraud, extortion, bribery and violations of the Travel Act!' and
Hobbs Act.'? Defendants’ notion to disnmiss Count V alleging a
viol ation of the Pennsylvania Quality Health Care Accountability
and Protection Act was denied. Defendants’ notion to dismss

Count VI alleging violation of a duty of good faith and fair

8 530 U. S. 211, 120 S. Ct. 2143, 147 L.Ed.2d 164 (2000).

o 15 U S. C § 1012.

10 See Parker v. Brown, 317 U S. 341, 63 S.Ct. 307, 87 L.Ed. 315 (1943).
1n 18 U.S.C. § 1952.

12 18 U.S.C. § 1951.
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dealing was granted. 1In all other respects, Defendants’ Mbdtion
to Dismiss was denied. 3

On Cctober 6, 2003 plaintiffs filed their Anended
Compl aint. On Novenber 14, 2003 Defendants’ Mtion to D smss
and/or Strike Certain Portions of the Arended Conpl ai nt was
filed.

On Decenber 30, 2003 a Status Conference was hel d by
t he undersi gned pursuant to Federal Rule of G vil Procedure 16.

At that conference the court attenpted, al beit unsuccessfully, to
attai n consensus between counsel for the parties regarding an
appropriate schedule for the conpletion of discovery, dispositive
nmotions and trial. On January 14, 2004, a conprehensive Rule 16
Status Conference Order was entered by the undersigned

menori alizing the decisions nade at the status conference held
Decenber 30, 2003.

Fromlate 2003 until m d-2005, a plethora of notions
were filed both with this court and with United States Magi strate
Judge Arnold C. Rapoport. The January 2, 2003 Standi ng Order of
t he undersi gned provides that all discovery disputes which cannot

be am cably resol ved shall be brought to the attention of

13 In their Arended Conplaint, plaintiffs changed the nunbering of
some of the counts which were also contained in the original Conplaint. This
was necessary to acconmodate our dism ssal of Counts Il and VI fromthe
original Conplaint and plaintiffs’ inclusion of a new count nunbered V in the
Amended Conpl ai nt.
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Magi st rate Judge Rapoport “by letter or other informal neans”.?!
Moreover, the Standing Order provides that: “Any party contendi ng
that the Order of the Magistrate Judge is clearly erroneous or
contrary to law nmay file a Petition to Reconsider, together with
a proposed Order, directed to the undersigned pursuant to
28 U.S.C. 8§ 636(b)(1)(A."

On April 26, 2004, partly in response to the filing of
i nnuner abl e notions and the sl ow pace of discovery, | extended
the deadlines set in our January 14, 2004 Rule 16 Status
Conference Order. Moreover, on August 5, 2004, because of the
inability of the parties to resolve any of their discovery
di sputes without court intervention, | placed this matter into
civil suspense but required the parties to continue the discovery
pr ocess.

Fromlate 2004 into the summer of 2005 the parties
continued their incessant notion practice and exhibited a
conplete inability to agree on even the nost basic matters. In
response to plaintiffs’ request for appoi ntnent of a speci al
mast er and over defendants’ objection, | appointed Karolyn

Vreel and Bl ume, Esquire,!® as Special Discovery Master (“SDM) by

14 I note that because of the nunber of disputes and aninosity
bet ween the parties, Magistrate Judge Rapoport eventually required the parties
to file formal nmotions rather than utilize his usual |ess formal dispute
resol uti on procedures.

15 Attorney Blume is known to the court as an attorney of over 30
years experience. She received a Bachelor of Arts degree with honors in

(Footnote 15 continued):
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Order dated August 25, 2005, pursuant to the provisions of Rule
53 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

The next day, on August 26, 2005, | entered an Order
granting in part, and denying in part, Defendants’ Mdtion to
Dismss and/or Strike Certain Portions of the Amended Conpl aint.
Specifically, | granted defendants’ notion to dism ss all
all egations of RICO violations in Counts | and Il of the Anended
Conpl ai nt based upon 18 U.S.C. § 1962(a).

Moreover, | granted defendants’ notion to dism ss Count
V (breach of contract) of plaintiffs’ Amended Conpl ai nt agai nst
def endants Capital Blue Cross, H ghmark Inc., John S. Brouse,
Janes M Mead and Joseph Pfister. (Count V renains agai nst
def endant Keystone only.) | further granted defendants’ notion

to dismss plaintiffs’ claimfor punitive damages from Counts 1,

(Continuation of footnote 15):

political science in 1974 from Skidnore College and a Juris Doctorate degree
fromVillanova University School of Law in 1977.

Attorney Blume spent the first 15 years of her career in a
private, general |aw practice handling a broad spectrum of clainms and issues
for individual, business and non-profit organization clients. From 1992
t hrough 2001 she served as Senior Law Clerk to United States Magistrate Judge
Arnold C. Rapoport handling a wide variety of civil and crimnal matters
i nvol ving both state and federal |law. Thereafter, from 2001 until 2004
Attorney Blume served as in-house counsel for PPL Corporation. Formerly she
served as President of the Bar Association of Lehigh County. Attorney Blune
is the founder and owner of Conflict Resolution Services |located in Allentown,
Pennsyl vania. Currently, she provides nediation and arbitrati on services at
all stages of conflict for businesses and other ventures.

Attorney Blunme’s know edge and experience nade her uniquely
qualified to serve as Special Discovery Master in this matter considering the
contentiousness exhibited by the parties in the discovery process.
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1l and V of plaintiffs’ Anmended Conplaint and struck the request
for punitive damages fromthe Amended Conpl aint.

Finally, | granted defendants notion to strike
paragraphs 14(f), 53(f), 53(h), 124 (as it relates to allegations
regarding 18 U. S.C. 8§ 1962(b)) and paragraphs 2(j), (m, (o),
(u), (v), (w) and (x) fromthe prayer for relief contained in
Count 111 of plaintiffs’ Amended Conplaint. | denied defendants’
motion to dismss or strike in all other respects.

On Septenber 12, 2005 all defendants answered
plaintiffs’ Amended Conpl aint and asserted affirmative defenses
to plaintiffs’ clains. Defendant Keystone also asserted a
counterclaimfor recoupnent or set-off.

By Order dated and filed Septenber 26, 2005 | set
deadl i nes for class discovery, ® expert reports, and expert
depositions regarding class discovery; plaintiffs’ deadline for
filing an anmended notion for class certification; defendants’
deadline for a response to plaintiffs’ notion for class

certification; a hearing date for plaintiffs’ notion for class

16 | note that while February 1, 2006 was the deadline established by
the court for the completion of class discovery in this matter, class
di scovery continued, with the constant participation and oversight of Specia
Di scovery Master Blunme. Docunents offered and received into evidence at the
class certification hearings included those produced on the evening of Friday,
March 3, 2006 when defense counsel forwarded to plaintiffs’ counsel conputer
di sks contai ni ng thousands of pages of information regarding clains
submi ssi ons.

The I ate production of discovery after the class discovery

deadline is one of the many issues addressed in plaintiff’s’ nmotion for
sanctions filed March 22, 2006.
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certification; deadlines for trial expert reports and
depositions; a dispositive notion deadline; a deadline for
notions in limne, and a trial date.

On March 6-10, 2006 | conducted the class certification
hearing in this matter. On March 10, 2006 the record was cl osed,
cl osing argunents were heard by the court and the matter was
t aken under advi senent.

By ny Order and Opini on dated Decenber 20, 2006 and
filed Decenber 21, 2006 | certified a class in this class action
for the period fromJanuary 1, 1996 through and including
Cctober 5, 2001 on behalf of the foll ow ng subcl asses:

Al'l nedical service providers in connection
wi th nmedical services rendered to patients insured
by defendant Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc.
who during the period January 1, 1996 through
Oct ober 5, 2001:

(1) submtted clainms for reinbursenent
on a fee-for-service basis for covered
services which clains were denied or reduced
t hrough the application of automated edits in
the clains processing software used by
def endants to process those clainms; and/or

(2) received less in capitation?’
paynments than the provider was entitled
t hrough the use and application of automated
systens to “shave” such paynents in the
manner alleged in plaintiffs Amended
Conpl aint filed Cctober 6, 2003.

1 A “capitation” is “an annual fee paid a doctor or nedical group
for each patient enrolled in a health plan.” Wbster’'s Third New
International Dictionary 332 (1968).
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In that Order, | also certified ten factual issues for
class treatnment, including a cornmon failure to pay clean clains
within the applicable statutory tinme period and common proof of a
conspiracy to defraud in violation of RICO*® | also certified
three |l egal issues for class treatnment, including whether
defendants commtted mail or wire fraud, and whether they
viol ated the Pennsyl vani a pronpt paynent statute.?!®

Finally, | certified eight comon defenses for class
treatnment, including whether the class clains are barred by
di scl osures in defendants’ standard fornms, manuals and
newsl etters; by the applicable statute of limtations; or because
of the absence of any nmaterial m srepresentations, m sleading
di scl osures or om ssions by defendants in their standard form
contracts and consulting agreenents.

In my class certification Order, | approved plaintiff
Natalie M Gider, MD., both in her individual capacity and as
President of plaintiff Kutztown Famly Medicine, P.C., as the
sole class representative. | also appointed plaintiffs’ counsel,
Kenneth A. Jacobsen, Esquire, Louis C. Bechtle, Esquire,

Francis J. Farina, Esquire and Joseph A O Keefe, Esquire, each

as cl ass counsel .

18 The Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICO),
18 U.S.C. 88 1961-1968.

19 Pennsyl vania’s Quality Health Care Accountability and Protection
Act, Act of May 17, 1921, P.L. 682, No. 284, 88 2101-2193, as anended,
40 P.S. 88 991.2101 to 991.2193.
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PLAI NTI FFS' MARCH 22, 2006 SANCTI ONS MOT| ON

Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for Findings of
Cont enpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rules of
Cvil Procedure and Other Provisions of Law was filed on
March 22, 2006. In their March 22, 2006 sanctions notion,
plaintiffs seek sanctions and a finding of contenpt against the
i ndi vi dual and corporate defendants, and their counsel in this
case. Specifically, plaintiffs seek sanctions against all
def endants and their counsel pursuant to Rules 11,2 26(g) and
37 of the Federal Rules of G vil Procedure.

In addition, plaintiffs seek sanctions against al
def ense counsel and their respective law firnms pursuant to

28 U.S.C. 8 1927?* and Rule 83.6.1%% of the Rules of Civil

20 By ny Order dated January 22, 2007 and filed February 28, 2007,
granted the objections of defendants and respondents to the Rule 11 portion of
plaintiffs’ notion for sanctions and struck all requests and cl ai ns based upon
that Rule. The reasons for my decision are on the record of the proceedings
hel d on January 22, 2007. Therefore, | need not address any of plaintiffs’
al  egations concerning Rule 11 sanctions in this Qpinion.

2t 28 U.S.C. § 1927 provides as follows:
§ 1927. Counsel’s liability for excessive costs
Any attorney or other person admtted to conduct cases
in any court of the Untied states or any territory
t hereof who so nmultiplies the proceedings in any case
unreasonably and vexatiously may be required by the
court to satisfy personally the excess costs,

expenses, and attorneys’ fees reasonably incurred
because of such conduct.

22 Local Rule 83.6.1 (b) and (c) provide:
Rul e 83.6.1 Expedition of Court Business

(Foot note 22 continued):
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Procedure for the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania. Finally, plaintiffs seek sanctions
under this court’s inherent supervisory powers.

Plaintiffs allege that defendants litigation tactics in
this case have been a calculated effort to thwart discovery
al together, delay plaintiff's receipt of highly critical
docunents necessary for the class certification proceedi ngs
before the court and for ultimate trial on the nerits and to
underm ne the adm nistration of justice in this court.

Anmong the strategies plaintiffs allege that defendants
and their counsel have intentionally and repeatedly utilized,
i ncl ude nunerous neasures to subvert and circunvent the discovery
process in this case as follows: 2

1. Delaying production of critical docunents

until after specific deadlines established by the
court and Special D scovery Master Bl une.

(Continuation of footnote 22):

(b) No attorney shall, wthout just cause, fail to
appear when that attorney’'s case is before the Court
on a call, nmotion, pretrial or trial, or shall present

to Court vexatious notions or vexatious opposition to
nmotions or shall fail to prepare for presentation to
the Court, or shall otherwise so multiply the
proceedings in a case as to increase unreasonably and
vexatiously the costs thereof.

(c) Any attorney who fails to conply with section (a)
or (b) may be disciplined as the Court shall deem

just.
28 See Chanbers v. NASCO lInc., 501 U S 32, 111 S .. 2123,
115 L. Ed. 2d 27 (1991).
24 See Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt

Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Q her
Provi si ons of Law, which nmotion was filed on March 22, 2006, at pages 2-4.
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2. Denying the existence of docunents, only to
produce them after the expiration of discovery
deadl i nes.

3. Failing to tinely suppl enent di scovery
responses under Rule 26(e).

4. Hidi ng docunents behind bogus clains of
privil ege.

5. Falsely describing docunents on privilege
| ogs.

6. Providing evasive and inconplete responsive
responses to plaintiffs’ discovery requests.

7. Msrepresenting to plaintiffs’ counsel, the
Speci al Di scovery Master and the court the
corporate defendants’ interrelationships with each
ot her, and based upon those allegedly false
statenments, refusing to even search for, |let alone
produce, documents responsive to plaintiffs’

di scovery requests.

8. Msrepresenting to plaintiffs’ counsel and
Speci al Di scovery Master Blunme that el ectronic
data either did not exist at all or would take
years to retrieve and produce, while at the sane
time providing simlar information to their
experts for use in preparation of expert reports
to oppose class certification.

9. Flagrant and repeated violation of the court’s
Novenber 4, 2005 Order that all privilege |ogs be
produced no | ater than Novenber 14, 2005 and t hat
al | underlying docunents reflected on those | ogs
be provided to Special Discovery Master Blune by

t hat same date.

10. Permtting alleged perjured testinony to be
of fered at depositions of their clients and filing
equal ly allegedly perjurious declarations with the
court.

11. Allegedly fraudulently conpiling and

assenbl i ng di sparate groups of docunents together
and passing them off as one integrated docunent
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and a single “exhibit” in court filings and at
deposi tions.

12. Repeated and flagrant violations of the

Protective Order entered in this case, even after
bei ng adnoni shed by Magi strate Judge Rapoport in
an Order dated July 20, 2005 for such viol ations.

As a result of the conbined actions and inactions
al | eged above, plaintiffs seek the foll ow ng sanctions agai nst
defendants, their present counsel and their forner counsel.?®

A. Adnoni shnrent of all defense counsel of record,
their respective firnms and the individual and
corporate defendants for the conduct.

B. Findings of Contenpt as against all defense
counsel of record and all corporate and i ndivi dual
defendants for their conduct.

C. Oders of sanction pursuant to Rules 26(g)(3),
37(a) (4) (A, 37(b)(2) (A, (B, (O and (D,
37(c)(1) and 37(d) of the Federal Rules of Cvil
Procedure; 28 U S.C. 8§ 1927; Local Rule of Gvil
Procedure 83.6.1; and the inherent powers of the
court, including, but not limted to:

(1) reinbursenment of plaintiffs’ attorneys’
fees and expenses (including those paid by
plaintiffs to the Special D scovery Mster)
i ncurred because of defendants’ and
respondents’ conduct; and

(1i) such other and further relief the court
deens just and proper to sufficiently
sanction defendants, their current and forner
counsel to protect the integrity of the court
and the adm nistration of justice.

25 See Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt
Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Q her
Provi si ons of Law, which nmotion was filed on March 22, 2006, at pages 44-45.
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Def endants and respondents deny all of plaintiffs’
al | egations of m sconduct and further deny that any of them have

acted in any inappropriate manner in this litigation.

PLAI NTI FFS' DECEMBER 19, 2006 SANCTI ONS MOTI ON

Plaintiff’s Conbi ned Motion and Menorandum f or
Sanctions and Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt Under Rule 37 of the Federal
Rules of G vil Procedure and Ot her Provisions of Law for
Def endants’ Fl agrant Di sobedi ence of This Court’s April 26, 2004
Order Prohibiting the Redaction of Discovery Docunents was filed
on Decenber 19, 2006

In their Decenber 19, 2006 sanctions notion, plaintiffs
seek sanctions and a finding of contenpt agai nst the individual
and corporate defendants, and their counsel in this case.?®
Specifically, plaintiffs seek sanctions against all defendants
and their counsel pursuant to Rule 37 of the Federal Rules of
Cvil Procedure, pursuant to 28 U S.C. 8§ 1927 and Local Rule
83.6.1 this court’s inherent supervisory powers.

In this regard, plaintiffs allege that defendants and

their counsel have redacted docunents on the basis of rel evance.

26 In footnote 1 of the Decenber 19, 2006 sanctions notion,
plaintiffs state: “Plaintiffs seek sanctions only against the |aw firnms of
def endants’ counsel, not any individual attorney. However, the prayer for
relief of the Decenber 19, 2006 sanctions nmotion seeks adnoni shment of al
def ense counsel and the individual and corporate parties and findings of
contenpt against all defense counsel and all individual and corporate parties.
I find that footnote 1 and the prayer for relief are inconsistent. Thus, in
anal yzi ng the conduct of defendants and their respective counsel on the issues
involved in this nmotion for sanctions, | will rely on the prayer for relief in
analyzing plaintiffs' allegations of m sconduct.
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More particularly, plaintiffs allege that by redacting docunents
on the basis of relevance, defendants and their counsel are in
viol ation of the verbal directive made on the record on January
14, 2004 by United States Magistrate Judge Arnold C. Rapoport and
in violation of ny April 26, 2004 Order and QOpi nion.

Moreover, plaintiffs allege that defendants have
refused to reference docunents on privilege |logs by a Bates
nunber. Rather than put Bates nunbers on privilege |ogs,
plaintiffs allege that defendants refer to redacted or wthheld
docunents by a reference nunber, the significance of which is
known by only defendants and their counsel.

As a result of the conbined actions and inactions
al | eged above, plaintiffs seek the foll ow ng sanctions agai nst
def endants, their present counsel and their forner counsel.

A.  Adnoni shnent of all defense counsel of record,
their respective firnms and the individual and
corporate defendants for the conduct.
B. Findings of contenpt against all defense
counsel of record and all corporate and i ndividual
defendants for their conduct.
C. That sanctions be inposed against all parties
and their former and current counsel pursuant to
Rules 26(9)(3), 37(a)(4)(A), 37(b)(2)(A), (B, (O
and (D), 37(c)(1) and 37(d) of the Federal Rules
of Cvil Procedure; 28 U S. C 8§ 1927; Local Rule
of Civil Procedure 83.6.1; and the inherent powers
of the court, including, but not limted to:

(1) reinbursement of plaintiffs’ attorneys’

fees and expenses incurred fromApril 26,
2004 until Decenber 19, 2006; and
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(1i1) deem ng established for purposes of this
action the facts alleged in paragraphs 6, 7,
56- 63, 66-79, 80-85, 111-113 and 123-137 of
plaintiffs’ Amended Conplaint filed
Oct ober 6, 2003.
Def endants and respondents deny all of plaintiffs’
al l egations of m sconduct in the Decenber 19, 2006 sanctions
nmotion. Furthernore, they deny that any of them have acted in

any i nappropriate manner in this litigation.

FI NDI NGS OF FACT

Based upon the testinony elicited at the sanctions
hearing, the exhibits introduced, plaintiffs’ two sanctions
noti ons and responses, the pleadings and record papers, and ny
credibility determ nations,? | make the follow ng findings of
fact.

1. On Septenber 12, 2003 Plaintiffs First Request for
Production of Docunents Related to Class Certification was served
upon def endant Keystone, which docunment requests sought broad
categories of docunents relating to capitation (request #1),
clainms information relating to capitation (request #12) and
reduced provider reinbursenent under capitation. (Plaintiff’s
Exhi bit 333, Tab 1).

2. Plaintiffs’ First Request for Production of
Docunments sought a privilege log for any docunent w thheld
pursuant to a claimof privilege. (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 333,
Tab 1, page 4).

2 Qur Findings of Fact reflect our credibility determnations
regarding the testinmony and evi dence presented at the sanctions hearing.
Credibility determi nations are within the sole province of the finder of fact,
in this case the court. Fed.RCv.P. 52. See, e.qg. lcicle Seafoods, Inc. v.
Worthi ngton, 475 U.S. 709, 715, 106 S.Ct. 1527, 1530, 89 L.Ed.2d 739, 745
(1986). Inplicit in our findings is the conclusion that we found the
testimony of witnesses credible in part, and have rejected portions of each of
their testinony as nore fully explained in our discussion
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3. On Septenber 12, 2003 Plaintiffs’ First Set of
Interrogatories Related to Class Certification was served on
def endant Keystone. On Decenber 4, 2003 these Interrogatories
were converted into docunent requests during a hearing before
Magi strate Judge Rapoport. These Interrogatories sought
i nformation regardi ng capitation, provider reinbursenent,
conpl ai nts by providers about reinbursenent and information
concerning the elenments that would be required to be proved for
class certification. (Plaintiff’s exhibit 333, Tab 2).

4. From Cct ober 2003 t hrough Decenber 2003, Keystone’s
i n-house | egal departnent and attorneys from respondent Hangl ey,
Aronchi ck, Segal & Pudlin, including John S. Summers, Esquire,
conducted a series of neetings regarding the defense of this
case. (Notes of Testinony (“N.T.”) of the hearing conducted
before ne on February 7, 2007 at pages 23-24, 34-43, 65-67 and
69-72).

5. Mchael Wlfe, Esquire, corporate counsel for
Capital since January 15, 2001, comruni cated on behal f of Capital
and |later both Capital and Keystone with outside counsel for
Capital and Keystone on a regular basis. (Notes of Testinony of
the hearing conducted before ne on January 25, 2007 at page 18;
Not es of Testinony of the hearing conducted before nme on January
26, 2007 at page 73; Notes of Testinony of the hearing conducted
before ne on February 8, 2007 at pages 71-72).

6. Sonetinme between Cctober 2003 and the end of
Decenber 2003, defendants and defense counsel entered into a
j oi nt -defense agreenent, and Attorney Summers took the lead in
defending this case on behalf of all defendants and their
counsel. (Notes of Testinony of the hearing conducted before ne
on January 23, 2007 at pages 90-95).

7. During neetings held with Keystone enpl oyees,
Attorney Summrers instructed Keystone enpl oyees that they were not
permtted to obtain clains processing data or reports from
Synertech (Keystone' s clainms processor) that m ght be responsive
to plaintiffs’ discovery requests even though Keystone enpl oyees
routinely requested reports and data from Synertech. Mboreover,
during this tinme, Attorney Sumrers requested Keystone enpl oyees
to obtain data and reports to support defenses to the substantive
clainms and class certification issues. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibits
129, 199, 218, 244 and 245; Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin
(“HASP”) Exhibit 1; Capital Blue Cross (“CBC') Exhibits 25, 29
and 85); Special Discovery Master (“SDM) Report #4 (Docket Entry
454); Notes of Testinony of the hearing conducted before nme on
January 24, 2007 at pages 17-18, 61, 62-65, 66 and 74-78; Notes
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of Testinony of the hearing conducted before ne on February 9,
2007 at pages 28-35; N. T., February 7, 2007, at 23-24, 34-43,
65- 67, 69-72, 140-150, 168).

8. Synertech was the processor of, and storage for,
all of Keystone's clains data. Pursuant to the terns of the
Adm ni strative Services Agreenment (“ASA’) by and between Keystone
and Synertech, the information processed and stored by Synertech
was continuously owned by, and remai ned the property of, Keystone
while in Synertech’s possession. (CBC Exhibit 85).

9. Pursuant to the ASA, Keystone was entitled to
obtain routine and regular reports from Synertech created from
the data that Synertech stored. Keystone utilized Speci al
Operation Requests in the ordinary course of business to obtain
data reports from Synertech simlar to the type sought by
plaintiffs in their discovery requests. (CBC Exhibits 25, 29,
and 85; Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 129, 199, 218, 241, 244, 245 and
333, Tabs 1, 2, 8, and 9; HASP Exhibit 1; N T., January 24, 2007,
at 17-18, 61, 62-65, 66, 74-78; N T., February 7, 2007, at 23-24,
34-43, 65-67, 69-72, 140-150, 168).

10. Defendants routinely denied not only the existence
of the Synertech data, but also their ability to conply with
plaintiffs’ discovery requests. (SDM Report #8, Docket Entry
543) .

11. On Cctober 14, 2003 an unknown enpl oyee of
Keyst one created “Kutztown-030306" dat abase on a Keystone
conputer. This database contained data which plaintiffs
requested in their formal discovery requests years prior to
February 2006. In response, Keystone repeatedly denied
possessi on, custody, control, or the ability to generate the
requested data, until Keystone produced it in February 2006,
after the close of the class certification discovery period
deadl i ne, and very shortly before conmmencenent of the class
certification hearing. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 240).

12. On COctober 17, 2003 all commrercial clains, error
code descriptions and Senior Blue clains tables were added to the
Kut zt own- 030306 dat abase. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 240).

13. From Cct ober 2003 t hrough Novenber 2003, Keystone
had the ability to generate data of the exact type which
plaintiffs sought to be produced. This data could be requested
from Synertech in the normal course of business by sinply
requesting the data. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 129, 199, 218, 241,
244, 245 and 333; HASP Exhibit 1; CBC Exhibits 25, 29 and 85;
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N. T., January 24, 2007, at pages 64-66; N T., February 7, 2007,
at 23-24, 34-43, 65-67, 69-72, 140-150, 168).

14. The Kutzt own-030306 dat abase created by Keystone
on Cctober 14, 2003 revealed that the information sought by
plaintiffs was available to Keystone and in its possession and
control throughout the discovery process. (Plaintiff’'s Exhibit
240) .

15. On Novenber 25, 2003 Keystone enpl oyee Ruth
Jur ki ewi cz produced a conputer disk fromthe Kutztown - 030306
database . This disk contained a spreadsheet known as “Gider to
Legal ”. The spreadsheet contained detailed clains and encounter
information regarding plaintiff Kutztown Fam |y Medicine, P.C
for the class period and beyond. This is indicative of
Keystone’'s ability, as early as Fall 2003, to produce and
generate reports and clains data. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 240 and
241) .

16. On Novenber 26, 2003 Capital and H ghmark cl osed
on a Stock Purchase Agreenent whereby Capital acquired H ghmark’s
50% interest in Keystone. On that date, Capital becanme the sole
owner of Keystone. Between January 1 and March 31, 2004 al
Keyst one enpl oyees becane Capital enployees. Capital then
obt ai ned actual possession, custody and control over all Keystone
docunents. (N T., January 25, 2007, at 19-20.)

17. In January 2004 Keystone had the ability to
generate clains data through its Conprehensive Anal ytical Health
Reporting System (“CAHRS’) in the routine course of business.
(N.T., January 24, 2007, at 64-66; N.T., February 7, 2007, at
23-24, 34-43, 65-67, 69-72, 140-150, 168).

18. On January 14, 2004 Magi strate Judge Rapoport
rul ed that defendants were not the arbiters of rel evance and
di rected defendants not to withhold di scovery on that basis.

19. On January 25, 2004 after being unable to obtain
clains data from defendants, plaintiffs served a subpoena on
Synertech seeking materials and data stored for defendant
Keystone. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 102).

20. Soon after plaintiffs’ subpoena was served on
Synertech, Ed Loscher of Synertech was contacted by Keystone in-
house counsel and was asked to gat her Keystone rel ated docunents,
a request that he honored by sending a conplete set of materials
to Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin. (N T., January 24, 2007,
at 7-8).
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21. On February 2, 2004 Plaintiffs’ Second Request for
Production of Docunents Directed to All Defendants was served and
requested all docunents related to conbination logic (“conbo
| ogi c”) (Request 25), automatic denials (Request 26), and al
docunents provided to any consultant or retained expert (Request
56). (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 333, Tab 8).

22. By ny Order dated February 2, 2004, defendants
were directed to provide privilege logs in the formoutlined in
the Order. (Docket Entry 61).

23. On February 6, 2004, after its attorney, Mark A
Li eberman, Esquire, had consulted wth Keystone s counsel,
John S. Sunmers, Esquire, Synertech objected to plaintiffs’
subpoena, claimng that the nmaterials sought were “trade
secrets”. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 106; N T., January 24, 2007,
at 96-98 and 99-121).

24. On February 19, 2004 Keystone enpl oyee Ruth
Jurkiewi cz sent a nmenorandumto Brian Britt of Keystone attaching
all Kutztown Famly Medicine, P.C. clains that were rejected
because of bundling, rejected because the procedure was deened
integral, rejected for capitation, and rejected by error code.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 217).

25. On February 24, 2004 Ruth Jurkiew cz sent a second
menorandumto Brian Britt. The nmenmorandum listed many clains for
medi cal services provided to patients by plaintiff Kutztown
Fam ly Medicine, P.C. which were rejected for paynent by
Keyst one. Keystone’s conputer had been progranmed to reject, as
“integral”, clains for nore than one nedical service perfornmed
for a patient by a doctor on the sane day. The Keystone conputer
assigned an “error code” to such dual clains, signifying that the
cl ai m had been rejected. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 217).

26. On March 1, 2004 Attorney Summers sent a letter to
the court attaching a series of Declarations which affirmatively
represented to the court that plaintiffs’ allegations of bundling
and downcodi ng | acked any factual basis, and that those clains
were “wthout nmerit”. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 238; N T., January
26, 2007, at 62-66).

27. After plaintiff served a subpoena requesting
docunents from Synertech, Keystone counsel John S. Summers
contacted Synertech, after which on March 3, 2004 Synertech nade
its personnel available to Attorney Sumrers. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit
109; N.T., January 24, 2007, at 7-8, 18-21, 96-98 and 99-121).

- XXXi -



28. On April 5, 2004, in response to plaintiffs’
repeat ed denmands for the underlying data and materials in support
of the Declarations sent to the court on March 1, 2004, Attorney
Summers sent a letter to plaintiffs’ counsel declaring that the
Decl arations were “lay opinion” under Rule 701 of the Federal
Rul es of Evidence, and stating that he refused to produce the
supporting material underlying the Declarations. (Plaintiffs’
Exhi bit 136).

29. By Order and Opinion of the undersigned dated
April 26, 2004, defendants were directed to either produce
mat erials responsive to plaintiffs’ discovery requests or to
pl ace such materials on a privilege log as required by the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and by the undersigned’ s
February 2, 2004 Order. (Docket Entry 86).

30. On May 7, 2004 Attorney Summers changed his
position concerning the materials and data in support of the
Decl arati ons which he sent to the court on March 1, 2004.
Specifically, Attorney Sunmers changed the reason he gave for not
di sclosing the data and materials. Previously, he had contended
that the data and materials constituted “lay opinion”. On My
7" he asserted that the data and materials were protected from
di scovery under the “expert disclosure” provision of Federal Rule
of Cvil Procedure 26(a)(2) and Federal Rule of Evidence 702.
(Plaintiffs” Exhibit 145).

31. On May 17, 2004 Plaintiffs’ Third Request for
Production of Docunents Related to Class Certification Directed
to Defendant Keystone Health Plan Central was served.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 333, Tab 9).

32. Plaintiffs’ Third Request for Production of
Docunents Related to Class Certification Directed to Defendant
Keystone Health Plan Central formally requested all decl arant
mat erials (Request 1) and lists of conmbined and bundl ed codes
(Requests 3 and 4). (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 333, Tab 9).

33. From May 4, 2004 until May 20, 2004, six databases
wi th bundling and downcodi ng data were created by Keystone from
clainms data obtained from Synertech. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 244).

34. On June 14, 2004 Attorney Summers spent an entire
day at the offices of Synertech questioning w tnesses who were
schedul ed for depositions noticed by plaintiffs to be conducted
the next day. Attorney Sumrers asked numerous questions and
revi ewed docunments with all of the witnesses in preparation for
t heir upcom ng depositions. Counsel for Synertech, Mark A
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Li eberman, Esquire, was present for these interviews. (NT.,
January 24, 2007, at 99-121).

35. On June 21, 2004 the Response of Defendant
Keystone Health Plan Central to Plaintiffs’ Third Request for
Production of Docunents was served. In its response, Keystone
i nterposed a new objection to plaintiffs’ discovery requests.
The objection stated “KHP Central further objects to production
of a privilege |og regardi ng docunments prepared or created after
KHP Central’s current counsel were retained in Cctober 2003.~
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 333, Tab 17).

36. The Response of Defendant Keystone Health Pl an
Central to Plaintiffs’ Third Request for Production of Docunents
al so contained a new objection to Docunent Request No. 1 (a
request for all the underlying nmaterials and data supporting the
Decl arati ons by Keystone enployees). This new objection stated
that the declarant materials were protected by the attorney-
client privilege and work product doctrine. Furthernore,
def endant stated that “the documents relied upon and which form
the basis of the declarations are attached to each enpl oyee’s
declaration.” (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 333, Tab 17).

37. On June 27, 2004, after providing certain
docunents in discovery, Cheryl A Krause, Esquire, an attorney at
Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin, sent plaintiffs’ counsel a
letter indicating that Keystone's recent production contai ned
numer ous i nadvertently produced privil eged docunents, one of
whi ch was presuned by plaintiffs to be a nmenorandum aut hored by
Keyst one enpl oyee Robert Dufour. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 154).

38. On July 14, 2004 Keystone forwarded plaintiffs’
counsel an updated supplenental privilege log that did not
reference the nenorandum aut hored by M. Dufour. (Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 157). On that sanme day, a conpletely redacted Dufour
docunment was served on plaintiffs. The docunment was conpletely
bl ank except for bearing Bates nunber KHP0066053. However, the
docunent did not appear on a privilege log. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit
155).

39. On Cctober 26, 2004, sone Synertech w tnesses were
deposed by plaintiffs’ counsel. During the deposition, counsel
for Synertech sought a protective order from Magi strate Judge
Rapoport. The requested protective order concerned questions
posed to a Synertech wi tness about the preparation of Synertech
W tnesses by attorneys from Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin.
Judge Rapoport denied the protective order request. (Docket
Entry 157).
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40. Counsel for Synertech attenpted to inmediately
appeal Judge Rapoport’s denial of a protective order to the
undersi gned District Judge Janes Knoll Gardner, who was out of
town. Counsel then sought intervention fromthe sitting
Emergency Judge, United States District Judge Gene E. K. Pratter.
Judge Pratter also denied a protective order. (Docket Entry
367) .

41. On Novenber 5, 2004 Synertech sought
reconsi deration of Magistrate Judge Rapoport’s denial of a
protective order. (Docket Entry 164). On Novenber 24, 2004
Synertech filed an “anended” notion for reconsideration of Judge
Rapoport’s denial of a protective order. (Docket Entry 176).

42. On Novenber 1, 2004 Capital’s counsel denied
possessi ng any docunents relating to the “Health Connections”
conpany referred to by Capital Chief Executive Oficer Anita
Smth at her deposition, which docunents were the subject of a
speci fic docunent request made by plaintiffs. (Plaintiffs
Exhibits 71 and 333, Tab 10 (request 1)).

43. On Novenber 5, 2004 plaintiffs’ counsel, Francis
J. Farina, Esquire, sent a letter to Attorney Krause of Hangl ey,
Aronchi ck, Segal & Pudlin concerning withheld docunents that were
not listed on any privilege |log, including the redacted Dufour
docunent. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 177).

44. On Novenber 8, 2004 counsel for defendants
H ghmar k and Brouse deni ed that H ghnmark audits Keystone
operations or has any audit docunents concerni ng Keystone.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 29).

45. On Novenber 19, 2004 Attorney Krause responded by
letter to Attorney Farina s Novenber 5, 2004 letter. Attorney
Krause reiterated defendant Keystone' s position that any
docunent s obtai ned, generated or otherw se derived after the
appear ance of Hangl ey, Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin as defense
counsel in this case will not be listed on a privilege |og.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 178).

46. On Novenber 22, 2004 counsel for defendants
H ghmar k and Brouse agai n deny that H ghmark audits Keystone
operations or has possession of any audit docunments invol ving
Keystone. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 94, Responses 32 and 35).

47. On Decenber 6, 2004 a Keystone el ectronic mai

(“e-mail”) was generated with “Summers Data Spreadsheet XLS' as
an attachment. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 200).
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48. On January 14, 2005 counsel for the parties
convene the last of a series of “nmeet and confer” discussions,
for the purpose of review ng outstanding di scovery requests and
objections. At this final neeting, counsel for all defendants
refused to withdraw the “general objections” contained in all of
their respective responses to plaintiffs’ discovery requests.

Mor eover, counsel for Keystone again refused to list the
declarant materials on a privilege log. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 67)

49. On April 5, 2005, after plaintiffs sought
depositions of certain representatives from def endant
corporations for the purpose of establishing conpliance with the
requi renent that defendants search for docunents responsive to
plaintiffs discovery requests, defense counsel Daniel B. Huyett,
denied plaintiffs’ request to conduct such depositions.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 317).

50. On April 15, 2005 plaintiffs filed a notion with
Magi strate Judge Rapoport to strike defendants’ general
obj ections. Defendants all opposed plaintiffs’ notion. (Docket
Entries 238, 239 and 240).

51. By Oder filed July 26, 2005, WMagistrate Judge
Rapoport granted plaintiffs’ notion to strike defendants’ general
obj ecti ons.

52. On August 9, 2005 defendants separately filed
notions for reconsideration of Judge Rapoport’s July 26, 2005
Order striking their respective general objections.

53. On August 25, 2005, pursuant to Rule 53 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the undersigned appointed
Karol yn Vreel and Bl une, Esquire as Special Di scovery Master in
this case. (Docket Entry 373; Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 195).

54. The appoi ntnent of the SDM was necessitated by the
obvi ous di scovery problens involved in this case. Numerous
notions were filed with Magi strate Judge Rapoport by both
plaintiffs and defendants. Moreover, nearly every decision nmade
by Judge Rapoport was appeal ed to the undersigned. (Docket Entry
373) .

55. On Cctober 20, 2005 SDM Bl une conduct ed her

initial nmeeting with the parties. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 57 and
70) .
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56. On that sane date, Synertech and Tingley w thdrew
their objections to subpoenas issued by plaintiffs in January
2004 and produced rel evant docunments that were |isted as
“Wthheld Synertech Docunents”. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 196).

57. At the first nmeeting of the SDM Hi ghmark’s
counsel Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire, announced that she had
“recently |l ocated” audit and other docunments which counsel had
repeatedly denied existed. (Plaintiffs Exhibits 41, 4la. 41b,
41c, 38, 38a, 38b, 38c, 38d, 38e and 70).

58. At the Cctober 20, 2005 neeting, counsel for
Keyst one al so announced that Keystone had al so “recently | ocated”
24 boxes of material responsive to plaintiffs’ discovery
requests. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 203).

59. In early Novenber 2005, after |earning that SDM
Bl ume was prepared to i ssue a recommendation to the undersigned
that all declarant material be produced, Keystone agreed to
produce the materials, except those which it asserted were
privileged, and agreed to place those privileged itens on a | og.
(Docket Entry 441).

60. On Novenber 1, 2005 Capital’s counsel again denied
possessi on of any Health Connections docunents. (Plaintiffs’
Exhi bit 73).

61. By Order dated Novenmber 3, 2005, the undersigned
directed all parties to produce a privilege log of all docunents
they clainmed were privileged and to submt both the |og and the
docunents to SDM Bl unme. (Docket Entry 437).

62. SDM Bl une schedul ed di scovery neetings for
Novenber 3 and 4, 2005. Counsel were directed to produce
specific lists of discovery requests for discussion at the
nmeetings. On Novenber 2, 2005 at 10:58 p.m, counsel for
def endant Keystone e-mailed to plaintiffs’ counsel and the
Di scovery Master 160 pages of copies of plaintiffs’ discovery
requests and Keystone’'s responses for the neeting the next
norni ng. (Docket entry 441).

63. At the Novenber 3, 2005 neeting, Capital’s counsel
Jeffrey D. Bukowski, Esquire announced the “discovery” of up to
60 boxes of recently |ocated audit workpapers that counsel had
previ ously deni ed existed, and which docunents were represented
to the SDM one week earlier as having been destroyed.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 70).
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64. SDM Bl une requested counsel to narrow the scope of
their discovery requests by prioritizing them In response,
plaintiffs provided SDM Bl une and all defense counsel with a
reduced list of “H gh Priority” categories of docunents they
needed produced for the class certification hearing. (H ghmark
Exhi bit 15; Capital/Keystone Exhibit 29).

65. On Novenber 15, 2005 SDM Bl une hel d a di scovery
meeting with counsel. One of the discussion topics was
Keyst one’ s CAHRS operations and capabilities. (Plaintiffs’
Exhi bit 205).

66. The next day, Novenber 16, 2005, Synertech
produced 17,000 pages of docunents previously wthheld.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 220-7, 220-10, 220-16 and 220-18).

67. On Novenber 18, 2005 Keystone’s counsel announced
the “di scovery” of a CAHRS manual, made on the eve of a Rule
30(b)(6) deposition of a CAHRS designated witness. (Plaintiffs’
Exhi bit 204).

68. On Novenber 21, 2005 plaintiffs sent a letter to
SDM Bl unme recapping their previous requests for systens materials
(i.e. CAHRS) and sent an e-mail to Attorney Summers regarding the
CAHRS system (Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 207 and 207).

69. Late in the evening after normal business hours
the night prior to the Rule 30(b)(6) depositions of Keystone
W t nesses regarding the clainms processing data system counsel
for Keystone forwarded hundreds of docunents which previously had
been requested by plaintiffs. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 204, 205,
206, 207, 208, 209, 333, tabs 2, 8 and 9; SDM Report #2 (Docket
Entry 441); N T., January 25, 2007, at 157-158, 183-185, 239-
243) .

70.  On Novenber 22, 2005 Attorney Grifal co, counsel
for H ghmark, sent a letter to plaintiffs’ counsel indicating
t hat H ghmark had not ever searched for responsive docunents to
any docunent request propounded by plaintiffs to which there was
either a general or specific defense objection. (Plaintiffs’
Exhi bit 39).

71. On Decenber 22, 2005 Keystone produced 50, 937
docunent s including Synertech System Request Fornms which had been
previously withheld fromplaintiffs. The existence of the
docunents was exposed in the boxes of docunments |abeled “Wthheld
Synertech Docunents” produced by Synertech just prior to
Keystone’s production. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 199).
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72. On Decenber 31, 2005 Hi ghmark produced a privil ege
log listing docunents wi thheld on the grounds of “discussion of
matters unrelated to case”, “unrelated to KHPC' and “unrelated to
KHPC- - not produced”. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 9 and 11).

73. On January 12, 2006 Hi ghmark produced anot her
privilege log listing sonme of the grounds of the clained
privilege as “discussion of matters unrelated to case”,
“unrelated to KHPC’ and “unrel ated to KHPC--not produced”.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 10).

74. On January 31, 2006, the last day of class
di scovery, Capital produced Health Connections docunents after
repeatedly denying that it had any such docunments. (Plaintiffs’
Exhibits 74 and 75).

75. Tens of thousands of docunments were produced by
def endants col |l ectively on January 31, 2005, the day before the
end of class discovery. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 2).

76. On January 31, 2005 Hi ghmark produced five
conmput er disks of clainms information (previously produced to
def endants’ joint-expert, Steven Wggins) regarding plaintiff
Kut ztown Fam |y Medicine, P.C. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 22).

77. On February 3, 2006 Hi ghmark produced 4, 356 pages
of documents, eight nore conputer disks containing discovery
docunents, and two nore conputer di sks previously produced by
H ghmark to defendants’ joint expert. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 22
and 82).

78. The February 3, 2006 di scovery production by
H ghmar k i ncl uded docunents related to Cap Gem ni Engagenent, of
whi ch H ghmark and its counsel previously had deni ed possession.
Cap Gem ni Engagenent is a group of auditors hired by H ghmark to
eval uate its conpliance with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (“H PAA’) (Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 44,
47, 48, 82,94, 98, tab 24, and 213; SDM Report #3, (Docket Entry
442); N. T., January 23, 2007, at 54-70.

79. Hi ghmark’s February 3, 2006 di scovery production
i ncl uded docunments relating to the Pennsyl vani a Medi cal Society
and Dennis A nstead, whose deposition had been conducted one week
earlier.
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80. On February 8, 2006 H ghmark produced 876 nore
pages of discovery and four nore conputer disks which it had
previously provided to the joint defense expert. (Plaintiffs’
Exhi bits 22 and 83).

81. On February 15, 2006 Hi ghmark served six nore
conmput er di sks of clains subm ssions which were previously
forwarded to the joint expert Steven Wggins. (Plaintiffs’
exhi bit 23).

82. On February 21, 2006 defendant Keystone delivered
to plaintiffs’ counsel the “Grider to Legal” spreadsheet that had
been created nearly three years earlier. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit
241) .

83. On February 16, 2006 Keystone produced “HMO Fee
Schedul e Data Tabl es Added to KHPO30375 Dat abase”, a data
conpilation of a type that defendant Keystone and its counsel had
previ ously deni ed existed and denied coul d be created.
(Plaintiffs” Exhibit 240).

84. On February 17, 2006 Hi ghmark reported that it was
doing “prelimnary work” on “electronic clains that were sent to
its clearinghouse.” (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 20).

85. On February 18, 2006 Hi ghmark produced to
plaintiffs’ counsel two nore expert conputer disks of clains
information. (Plaintiffs Exhibit 24).

86. On February 20, 2006 Keystone produced
“KHP0295655", a conputer disk of electronic data containing
i nformation regardi ng Keystone provider clains information.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 244).

87. On February 21, 2006 four nore joint expert
conput er di sks containing clainms information were produced to
plaintiffs by H ghmark. (Plaintiffs Exhibit 25).

88. On February 25, 2006 H ghmark produced an
addi ti onal 326 pages of discovery docunents to plaintiffs by.
(Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 84).

89. On March 1, 2006 defense counsel represented to
SDM Bl unme and plaintiffs’ counsel that there were no nore
conput er di sks of discovery materials and that everything had
been produced for class discovery. (Docket Entries 485 and 494).
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90. On March 2, 2006 Keystone produced anot her
conmput er disk containing clainms information. (Plaintiffs
Exhi bit 240).

91. On March 3, 2006 another conputer disk (KHP
0305375) contai ning Keystone clains information was produced to
plaintiffs by Keystone. (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 240).

92. On March 6, 2006 the class certification hearings
in this matter commenced before the undersigned.

93. There is no evidence in the record indicating that
i ndi vi dual defendants James M Mead, John S. Brouse or Joseph
Pfister had any know edge of, or participation in, the production
of any discovery not directly addressed to each of them
i ndi vi dual |y.

CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

1. Defendants Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc.,
Capital Blue Cross, H ghmark, Inc. and their respective counsel,
i ncludi ng John S. Sunmers, Esquire and the law firm of Hangl ey
Aronchi ck, Segal & Pudlin, Jeffrey D. Bukowski, Esquire and the
law firmof Stevens & Lee, P.C., Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire and
the law firmof Stradl ey, Ronon, Stevens & Young all violated
Rul e 26(g)(2)(A) and (B) of the Federal Rules of G vil Procedure.

2. Defendants Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc.,
Capital Blue Cross, and H ghmark, Inc. all violated Rule 37(c)(1)
of the Federal Rules of G vil Procedure.

3. John S. Summers, Esquire and the law firm of
Hangl ey Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin, Daniel B. Huyett, Esquire,
Jeffrey D. Bukowski, Esquire and the law firm of Stevens & Lee,
Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire and the law firm of Stradl ey, Ronon,
Stevens & Young all violated 28 U S.C. §8 1927 and Rule 83.6.1 of
the Rules of G vil Procedure of the United States District Court
for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania by unreasonably and
vexatiously multiplying the proceedings in this case.

4. Plaintiffs failed to prove that any viol ations of
court Orders by defendants and their counsel warrant the
i nposition of separate sanctions.

5. Plaintiffs failed to prove that sanctions are

warrant ed agai nst any party or |lawer pursuant to Rule
37(a)(4)(A) of the Federal Rules of Cvil Procedure.
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6. Plaintiffs failed to prove that sanctions are
war rant ed agai nst any party or |awer pursuant to
Rule 37(b)(2)(A),(B),(C or (D of the Federal Rules of G vi
Pr ocedur e.

7. Plaintiffs failed to prove that any sanctions are
war r ant ed agai nst individual defendants John S. Brouse, Janes M
Mead or Joseph Pfister.

8. The April 24, 2004 Order and Opi nion of the
under si gned did not bar defendants fromredacting docunents for
any reason.

9. The Novenber 3, 2005 Order of the undersigned did
not require any party to include a Bates nunber on a privil ege
| og.

10. The August 25, 2005 Order appointing Speci al

Di scovery Master Karolyn Vreeland Bl une requires no action by the
parties and is not a basis for inposition of sanctions.

DI SCUSSI ON

Pursuant to Rule 26(b)(1) of the Federal Rules of Cvil
Procedure, the parties in this matter:

may obtain discovery regarding any matter, not
privileged, that is relevant to the claimor
defense of any party, including the existence,
description, nature, custody, condition, and

| ocati on of any books, docunments, or other

tangi ble things and the identity and | ocation of
per sons havi ng knowl edge of any di scoverable
material....Relevant information need not be
adm ssible at the trial if the discovery appears
reasonably calculated to |l ead to the discovery of
adm ssi bl e evi dence.

Fed. R Giv.P. 26(Db)(1).
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Plaintiffs’ two notions for sanctions raise serious
al | egati ons about the conduct of defense counsel and defendants
t hensel ves in the course of discovery in this matter. Plaintiffs
assert that defendants and their counsel have engaged in a
cal cul ated course of conduct to disrupt, delay and frustrate
plaintiffs’ legitimte search for discoverable materi al

To the contrary, defendants and their counsel deny al
of plaintiffs’ allegations and contend that they have
participated in the discovery process in a proper, professional
and et hi cal manner.

The course of discovery in this case is severely
troubling to the court. This case is nearly six-years old, and
di scovery is not conplete. At times the discovery process has
conpl etely broken down. It was necessary to appoint a Speci al
Di scovery Master to regulate and control discovery.

That process, while having limted effect, has al so
becone entangled in the apparent efforts of defendants to del ay
this matter at all costs. For instance, one of the reasons why |
appoi nted Speci al Di scovery Master Blune was the incessant notion
practice which threatened to paral yze the operations of
Magi strate Judge Rapoport and nyself. At that time both
plaintiffs and defendants were filing nunerous notions wth Judge

Rapoport, and the |osing party would al nost al ways seek
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reconsi deration by ne under ny Standing Order on discovery
di sput es.

After appoi ntnment of Special Discovery Master Bl une,
the parties spent a period of tinme productively dealing with
di scovery issues. Plaintiffs have accepted all the decisions of
Speci al Di scovery Master Blunme. Defendants initially accepted
many of her decisions, but reverted to a systenmatic routine of
not only appealing to ne nost, if not all, of her substantive
deci sions, but also filing objections to the Master’s nonthly
reports which detail the proceedi ngs before her and her
i npressions of the status of this case. The docket reveals the
anount of activity this case has generated by virtue of nearly
850 docket entries since this cases’s inception on Novenber 7,
2001.

As noted in earlier decisions, the |evel of aninosity
bet ween counsel and the parties has been generally high and at
times conpletely inappropriate even in hotly contested
[itigation.

As explained in detail below, | conclude that
plaintiffs have proven sone, but not all, of their allegations
concerning the conduct of defendants and their counsel during the
di scovery process. Furthernore, | conclude that based upon the

al l egations contained in plaintiffs’ Amended Conpl ai nt,
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def endants are in possession of nmuch of the information that wll
ei ther prove or disprove plaintiffs’ clains in this matter.

Def endant s have deni ed throughout this litigation that
they coomtted any of the acts alleged in the Anended Conpl aint.
Specifically, defendants deny that they bundl ed or downcoded
clains submtted by nedical providers, conspired to violate RI CO
commtted the RICO predicate acts of mail or wire fraud or failed
to pay the nenbers of the class pronptly. Al of plaintiffs’
factual and legal allegations will rise or fall based upon
docunents within the possession and control of defendants.

| find that defendants and their counsel have engaged
in a course of conduct which nmakes it clear that they have not
been forthcom ng wth the nost inportant information in this
case: the clains information and data generated in processing the
request for paynent for services rendered submtted by the
doctors who nmake up this class. |In addition, defendants and
t heir counsel have not been tinely forthcomng with information
concerning audits of Keystone.

The di scovery information requested by plaintiffs in
these two areas is vital to establish the validity or invalidity
of plaintiffs’ clains. There are certainly other inportant areas
of discovery, but the clains data is the nost inportant.

| f defendants have truly done nothing wong in this

matter, it wll not disadvantage themif plaintiffs receive and
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review all of the clains and audit information in defendants’
possession. However, the test for discoverable material is not
whether it will harma party, but rather whether it is rel evant
to the claimor defense of any party (if not privileged) or
whet her the discovery appears reasonably calculated to lead to
t he di scovery of adm ssible evidence. Fed.R Cv.P. 26(b)(1).
Certainly, the clains and audit information and data sought by
plaintiffs satisfy this definition.

The corporate defendants have repeatedly deni ed that
t hey have access to the requested information, and have
m srepresented the nature of their roles in the clains subm ssion
process. Moreover, defense counsel have feigned m sunderstandi ng
of words, terns and phrases clearly understood by them and their
clients.

Finally, regarding the credibility of Attorneys
Grifalco and Summers, | found both to be evasive in their
responses to many of the questions posed at the sanctions hearing
by plaintiffs’ counsel.?® However, the denmeanor and body
| anguage of both w tnesses changed dramatically when questi oned
by their own counsel. Although, it is not unusual for a
W t nesses’ deneanor to change when subject to adverse

questioning, the degree to which these wi tnesses’ deneanor

28 Testinony of Sandra A. Grifalco, N.T., January 22, 2007, at 68-
70, 73, 87-88 and 111; testinony of John S. Summers, N T., January 22, 2007,
at 152, 188-189, 207, 215-216, 217, 219, 222, 228, 233 and 238.
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changed was so striking that it left me with the feeling that
they both were hiding significant information and were not
conpletely candid about their activities in this matter.

Wth all of these concepts in mnd, | address
plaintiffs substantive allegations of m sconduct.

Viol ati ons of Rule 26(q)

Rul e 26(g) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
generally covers the signing of disclosures, discovery requests,

responses and objections. Rule 26(g) provides:

(g) Signing of Disclosures, D scovery Requests,
Responses, and Qbj ecti ons.

(1) Every disclosure made pursuant to
subdi vision (a)(1) or subdivision (a)(3) shall be
signed by at |east one attorney of record in the
attorney's individual name, whose address shall be
stated. An unrepresented party shall sign the
di scl osure and state the party's address. The
signature of the attorney or party constitutes a
certification that to the best of the signer's
know edge, information, and belief, fornmed after a
reasonabl e inquiry, the disclosure is conplete and
correct as of the tinme it is made.

(2) Every discovery request, response, or
obj ection nmade by a party represented by an
attorney shall be signed by at | east one attorney
of record in the attorney's individual nane, whose
address shall be stated. An unrepresented party
shall sign the request, response, or objection and
state the party's address. The signature of the
attorney or party constitutes a certification that
to the best of the signer's know edge,
information, and belief, fornmed after a reasonable
inquiry, the request, response, or objection is:
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(A) consistent with these rules and
warranted by existing |law or a good faith
argunent for the extension, nodification, or
reversal of existing |aw,

(B) not interposed for any inproper
pur pose, such as to harass or to cause
unnecessary delay or needl ess increase in the
cost of litigation; and

(© not unreasonable or unduly
burdensone or expensive, given the needs of
the case, the discovery already had in the
case, the anmount in controversy, and the
i nportance of the issues at stake in the litigation.
I f a request, response, or objection is not
signed, it shall be stricken unless it is
signed pronptly after the om ssion is called
to the attention of the party nmaking the
request, response, or objection, and a party
shall not be obligated to take any action
wWith respect to it until it is signed.

(3) If without substantial justification a
certification is made in violation of the rule,
the court, upon notion or upon its own initiative,
shal | inpose upon the person who made the
certification, the party on whose behal f the

di scl osure, request, response, or objection is
made, or both, an appropriate sanction, which may
i nclude an order to pay the anmount of the
reasonabl e expenses incurred because of the
violation, including a reasonable attorney’s fee.

Plaintiffs contend that in responses to their various
di scovery requests (interrogatories and requests for production
of docunments), defendants all included general objections that
were not consistent with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
warranted by existing | aw, nor sought nodification or reversal of

existing law. In addition, plaintiffs contend that the general
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obj ections were interposed for the inproper purposes of
harassnent, to cause unnecessary delay and to needl essly increase

the cost of this litigation.

Finally, plaintiffs contend that defendants did not
make good faith efforts to | ocate docunents requested by

plaintiffs.

On the contrary, all defendants and respondents assert
that plaintiffs fail to prove that the general objections were
made wi t hout substantial justification or for any inproper
purpose. In addition, defendants and respondents contend that
plaintiffs have al so interposed general objections, however, not
titled as “general objections”, but rather titled as “Qbjections
Applicable to Each D scovery Request”. Thus, defendants and
respondents argue that because plaintiff has al so interposed
general objections, defendants should not be sanctioned for

engagi ng in the same conduct in which plaintiffs have engaged.

Finally, defendants assert that in sonme instances they
initially did not |ocate docunents responsive to plaintiff’s
di scovery requests, but upon further search, docunents were
| ocat ed; and those docunents were produced under their continuing
obligation to suppl enent discovery responses under Rule 26(e).

For the follow ng reasons, | disagree.
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CGeneral Objections

The i ssue of general objections has been at the
forefront of the discovery disputes between the parties since
nearly the beginning of the discovery process. Plaintiffs
attenpted to discuss their discovery reqguests on numerous
occasions by engaging in “neet and confer” sessions wth defense
counsel . However, defendants refused to wi thdraw their general

obj ecti ons.

On April 15, 2005 plaintiffs filed a notion with
Magi strate Judge Rapoport to strike defendants’ general
objections. By Order dated July 26, 2005 Judge Rapoport granted

plaintiffs’ notion to strike defendants’ general objections.

On August 9, 2005 defendants sought reconsi deration by
me of Judge Rapoport’s July 26, 2005 Order. Wthout ruling on the
substance of defendants’ general objections, | referred themto
Speci al Di scovery Master Blunme for disposition. Special
Di scovery Master Blune ultimtely disnm ssed defendants’ general
objections with | eave to assert specific objections to

plaintiffs  outstanding discovery requests.

Upon review of the general objections contained in the
vari ous responses to plaintiffs’ discovery requests, and based
upon ny credibility determ nations of the testinony of Attorneys

Summers, Grifalco, Huyett and Bukowski, | conclude that
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defendants and their counsel interposed a nunber of legally
deficient general objections for the inproper purpose of delaying
di scovery in this case and to increase the costs to plaintiffs of

bringing this case to trial.

Initially, | do not believe the testinony of Attorneys
Summers, Grifalco, Huyett and Bukowski that they did nothing to
frustrate discovery in this case. Rather, | conclude that there
was a concerted effort to frustrate plaintiffs’ attenpts at

obtai ning rel evant di scovery.

Def ense counsel all testified that they attenpted to
work with plaintiffs. However, this assertion is belied by an
apparent | ack of discovery that was produced for the nearly one
year that this case was in civil suspense from August 5, 2004
until the first neeting with Special D scovery Master Bl une on
Cct ober 20, 2005. (As noted above, the Order placing this case
in civil suspense clearly directed the parties to continue

di scovery while the case was in suspense.)

Then, during their initial nmeeting with Special
Di scovery Master Blume, counsel for H ghmark and Keystone
announced that they had just recently |ocated responsive
docunents to | ong-sought-after discovery. Soon thereafter,
Attorney Huyett announced that Capital had al so just |ocated up

to 60 boxes of material.



| do not find credi ble defense counsel’s assertions
that they did not attenpt to subvert discovery by the use of the
general objections. Specifically, all the responses to
plaintiffs’ discovery requests include a general objection that
certain docunents are privileged. However, no defendant included
a privilege log with their responses to discovery requests until
directed to do so by the court. Failure to provide a privilege
log with discovery responses directly violates Rule 26(b)(5) (A
of the Federal Rules of Cvil Procedure and made the general

obj ection based upon alleged privilege legally deficient.

I n addi tion, beginning on June 21, 2004 defendant
Keystone attenpted to subvert my court Order of February 2, 2004,
my Order and Opinion of April 26, 2004 and Rule 26(b)(5)(A) by
i ncl udi ng a new general objection which stated: “KHP Centr al
further objects to the production of a privilege |og regarding
docunents prepared or created after KHP Central’s current counsel

were retained in Cctober 2003.”

O her exanpl es of inproper general objections include
Keyst one General Objection Nunmber 3 (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 233, tab
17), Hi ghmark CGeneral Objection Nunmber 2 (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 98,
Tab 20) and Capital Ceneral Objection Nunmber 2 (Plaintiffs’

Exhibit 99, Tab 26), to reference a few.

In addition, I find that the events involving the

general objections speak |loudly regarding the intent of defense



counsel and the parties. Defendants raised the general
objections in every response to plaintiffs’ discovery. Moreover,
t hey steadfastly maintained that these general objections were
all conpletely proper. Discovery ground to a halt because

def endants refused to produce rel evant docunents based upon these

I nappropri ate objections.

Judge Rapoport granted plaintiffs’ nmotion to strike the
general objections, and defendants appealed to ne. | referred
the issue of the general objections to Special D scovery Mster
Bl ume who al so di sm ssed the general objections. Defendants did
not appeal that decision.?® 1t was not until SDM Bl une was
conducting nearly daily discovery oversight neetings in this
matter that defendants finally gave this issue up by accepting
SDM Bl une’ s decision, nearly two years after the genera
objections were first interposed and after nearly one whol e year

of neani ngl ess activity in discovery.

Al'l discovery responses submitted in this matter were
signed by Attorneys Summers, Grifalco and Bukowski. Thus, it is
these three attorneys who face sanctions for violation of Rule
26(g). Based upon all the foregoing, | conclude that defendants

utilized the general objections for the inproper purpose of

29 The Discovery Master’s determ nation that the general objections
be stricken is one of the few matters whi ch def endants have not appealed to
ne.



causi ng unnecessary delay and increasing the costs of this

[itigation.

Finally, defendants and respondents contend that
because plaintiffs were al so including general objections in
their discovery responses to defendants’ discovery, defendants
and respondents should not be sanctioned for that conduct. |
di sagree. Plaintiffs’ conduct is not at issue in these sanctions
nmotions. Thus, even if plaintiffs may have incl uded i nproper
general objections in their discovery responses(l make no finding
that they did), it does not relieve defendants of their discovery

vi ol ati ons.
Audit Docunments Requested from Capital Blue Cross

As noted above, plaintiffs requested audit docunents
from defendant Capital. | conclude that Capital did not conduct

a reasonabl e investigation regarding plaintiffs’ request.

Specifically, | believe that portion of the testinony
of Attorney Bukowski that he kept his client fully informed about
plaintiffs discovery requests. Defendants produced no evidence
of any efforts nmade by anyone at Capital to find the audit
docunents which Capital’s counsel repeatedly said did not exist.
Mor eover, when plaintiffs’ counsel attenpted to schedule Rule
30(b)(6) depositions of Capital enployees, Attorney Huyett

objected to plaintiffs’ conducting those depositions.



In the absence of any evidence that Capital actually
conducted a reasonabl e search for the audit docunents and in
light of Attorney Huyett’'s objection to plaintiff investigating
this situation, | conclude that Capital was infornmed of
plaintiffs request (by Attorney Bukowski) and did not conduct a
reasonabl e search for any audit docunents until after the
appoi ntnent of the Special Di scovery Master. Thereafter, the
tardy search reveal ed as many as 60 boxes of docunents responsive

to plaintiffs’ discovery requests.
Audit Documents Requested from Hi ghmark

Plaintiffs al so requested audit docunents from
H ghmark. In H ghmark’s witten di scovery responses dated March
3, 2004, Novenber 8, 2004 and Novenber 22, 2004, anong ot hers,
Attorney Grifalco certified that a reasonabl e i nvestigation was
conpl eted and that H ghmark was not in possession of any audit

docunents.

However, in Attorney Grifalco s Novenber 22, 2005
letter, she stated that H ghmark had not even | ooked for any
docunents which were subject to an objection. Plaintiffs
requested audit docunents from Hi ghmark in numerous di scovery
requests.3 Each request was objected to by H ghmark. Attorney

Grifalco testified at the sanctions hearing that she kept

80 Sone exanples include Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 98, Tab 22, Request 10;
Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 98, Tab 38, Requests 4 and 6; Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 94,
Responses 32 and 35.
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H ghmark fully informed about plaintiffs’ discovery requests.

find her credible on that point.

Based upon its counsel’s assertion that H ghmark did
not even | ook for docunments which | conclude it knew plaintiffs
were seeking, Attorney Grifalco' s certification pursuant to Rule
26(g)(2) was false and constitutes a violation warranting a

sanction pursuant to Rule 26(Q)(3).
Di scovery of Clains Information

I n nunerous di scovery responses defendant Keystone and
its counsel, John S. Sumrers, Esquire, denied that they had any
i nformati on concerning clains data, or the ability to obtain such
data. | conclude that those representation were false. It is
clear fromthe testinony and record that Keystone had the ability
to generate reports of the kind requested by plaintiffs, either
i n-house through the CAHRS system or by requesting such
information from Synertech under the Adm nistrative Services
Agreenment (which establishes that Keystone is the owner of the

i nformation).

At the sane tinme that Keystone was certifying that it
was not in possession of any clains information, Attorney Summers
directed Keystone enpl oyees such as Ruth Jurkiewicz to conpile
clains information to support declarations submtted to the

court.



Rul e 26(g) Concl usion

Accordingly, for all the foregoing reasons, | concl ude
t hat Defendants Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc., Capital Bl ue
Cross, Highmark, Inc. and their respective counsel, including
John S. Sunmers, Esquire and the law firm of Hangl ey Aronchi ck,
Segal & Pudlin, Jeffrey D. Bukowski, Esquire and the |aw firm of
Stevens & Lee, P.C., Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire and the | aw
firmof Stradley, Ronon, Stevens & Young all violated

Rul e 26(g)(2)(A) and (B) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

Rul e 37 Sancti ons

Plaintiffs seek sanctions against all defendants and
respondents pursuant to Rule 37(a)(4)(A, 37(b)(2)(A,(B,(C and
(D), 37(c)(1l) and 37(d) of the Federal Rules of Ci vil Procedure.
The pertinent portions of Rule 37, Failure to Make Di scl osures or
Cooperate in Discovery; Sanctions, are reproduced in Appendix I,

which is attached to this Opinion and incorporated here.
Rul e 37(a)(4)(A) Sanctions

Plaintiffs nmoved for sanctions under Federal Rule of
Cvil Procedure 37(a)(4)(A). Under that subsection of the rule a
party may be awarded counsel fees and reasonabl e expenses

incurred in making a notion, if the notion is granted.

Rules 37(a)(2)(A)and (a)(2)(B) clarify that “the

notion” referred to in Rule 37(a)(2)(A) is a notion to conpel
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di scovery of the mandatory self-executing discovery disclosures
required by Rule 26(a), answers to interrogatories propounded
under Rule 33, or responses to a request for production of
docunents under Rule 34. Rule 37(a)(2)(A) provides in part, that
“[i1]f a party fails to nmake a disclosure required by Rule 26(a),
any other party nmay nove to conpel disclosure and for appropriate

sanctions.”
| find it inappropriate to award plaintiffs

Rul e 37(a)(4)(A) sanctions because plaintiffs neither filed a
notion to conpel disclosure, nor was any such notion to conpel
granted. Thus, | deny plaintiffs’ request for sanctions based

upon Rule 37(a)(4)(A).
Rul e 37(b)(2)(A) Sanctions

Federal Rule of G vil Procedure 37(b)(2)(A) provides
that if a party fails to obey an order to provide or permt
di scovery, the court may nake an order that any designated fact
shal |l be taken to be established in accordance wth the claim of

the party obtaining the order.

Plaintiffs contend that the directives to produce
di scovery in this case, which directives plaintiffs contend were
never chall enged or otherw se opposed, constitute either orders
of this court or “discovery orders”. Defendants and respondents

contend that there are no orders issued by this court that have
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been violated. For the reasons expressed below, | agree with

plaintiffs in part and with defendants and respondents in part.

The | anguage of Fed.R Civ.P. 37(b)(2) clearly requires
two things as conditions precedent to engagi ng the gears of the
rul es’s sanction machinery: (1) a court order nust be in effect;

and (2) the Order nust then be violated before sanctions may be

imposed. R W International Corp. V. Wl ch Foods, Inc.,
937 F.2d 11, 15 (1%t Gir. 1991). 1In this case, | conclude that

plaintiffs fail to fulfill the first condition

In my August 25, 2005 Order appointing Speci al
Di scovery Blune | conferred certain powers and duties upon her
pursuant to Rule 53 of the Federal Rules of Cvil Procedure. One
of the powers conferred on SDM Bl une was the power to “conpel
take and record evi dence when appropriate”. In addition, ny
appoi ntment Order provided: “in those instances where a ruling
made by the Special D scovery Master is accepted by the
parties...the Special D scovery Master shall confirmthe sanme by

letter to counsel and the court.”

Thus, based upon the express provisions of the
appoi ntnent Order, | conclude that in the event that the
procedures outlined in the appointnent Order were followed, a
directive by the Special D scovery Master woul d operate as the

equi valent of a court Order if not opposed by any party. Any
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other interpretation of nmy appointnent Order would strip SDM

Bl ume of the power conferred upon her.

In this case, plaintiffs contend that SDM Bl une i ssued
an unopposed directive to defendants, which directive was
referred to in her Cctober 27, 2007 Report, that stated in
pertinent part: “within fourteen days (14) days, defendants shal
produce fromthenselves or third parties a |list of codes that

wer e bundl ed or downcoded, and deliver that data to plaintiffs.”

In addition, plaintiffs rely on Special Discovery
Mast er Reconmendation VI filed with the court on February 13,
2006. In Reconmendation VI, SDM Bl une directed the foll ow ng

information to be provided by defendants.

1. List of all codes conbined for each year of
t he cl ass peri od;

2. List of all codes downcoded for each year of
t he cl ass peri od;

3. List of all nodifiers rejected or otherw se
not recogni zed by defendants’ processing
systen(s);

4. List of all clains denied as “integral” for
each year of the class period for which the
service perforned did not appear on Keystone’'s
| -10 Policy of integral procedure;

5. Copies of all electronic claimsubm ssions
made by plaintiff Kutztown Fam |y Medicine, P.C
during the class period, especially those which
appear on Capital Exhibit 3 used in the
February 3, 2006 deposition of plaintiff Dr.
Natalie M Gider.

In addition, plaintiffs appear to rely on Speci al
Di scovery Master Recommendation VII which directed the sane
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i nformati on be produced, but w thdrew the reasons that supported
Recommendation VI. For the follow ng reasons, | agree with
def endants and respondents that Rule 37(b)(2)(a) sanctions are

not appropri ate.

Initially, | note that Special Discovery Master
Reconmendati on VI was explicitly intended to be superceded by
Recommendation VII. Thus, defendants could not have failed to

conply with a recommendation that was effectively w thdrawn.

Regar di ng Recommendation VII, there are currently
pendi ng objections to that Di scovery Master recommendati on which
were filed by H ghmark. Hence, because the Special D scovery
Master’s appoi ntment Order requires de novo review by me of any
recommendation in response to an objection, and because | have
not yet ruled on H ghmark’ s objection, defendants cannot be in

violation of that directive.

Finally, with regard to the D scovery Master’s
unopposed directive to defendants to deliver to plaintiffs a |ist
of codes that were bundl ed or downcoded, which directive was
referenced in her October 27, 2007 Report, plaintiffs provided no
evi dence at the hearing, nor provided any exhibit establishing
that the Special Discovery Master confirmed to ne and counsel by
| etter that her unopposed ruling was accepted by the parties.

It is distressing that defendants failed to conply with

a directive of the Special D scovery Master to which none of them
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obj ected. However, the appointnent Order is clear on the
procedure to be followed, and in the absence of that procedure
being followed, | am constrained to conclude that there was no

order in place that is sanctionable under Rule 37(b)(2)(a).
Rul e 37(c) (1) Sanctions

Plaintiffs seek sanctions pursuant to Rule 37(c) of the
federal Rules of Civil Procedure. As noted above, Rule 37(c)

provi des:

(c) Failure to D sclose; False or Msleading
Di sclosure; Refusal to Admt.

(1) A party that w thout substanti al
justification fails to disclose information
required by Rule 26(a) or 26(e)(1), or to
anend a prior response to discovery as
required by Rule 26(e)(2), is not, unless
such failure is harmess, permtted to use as
evidence at a trial, at a hearing, or on a
notion any witness or information not so
disclosed. In addition to or in lieu of this
sanction, the court, on notion and after

af fording an opportunity to be heard, may

i npose ot her appropriate sanctions. In
addition to requiring paynent of reasonable
expenses, including attorney's fees, caused
by the failure, these sanctions may include
any of the actions authorized under Rule
37(b)(2)(A), (B), and (C) and may include
informng the jury of the failure to make the
di scl osure.

Fed. R G v.P. 37(c).

To assess whether Rule 37(c) is violated, | nust
exam ne the requirenents of Rules 26(a) and 26(e)(1). Initially,

| address Rule 26(a).
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Vi ol ations of Rule 26(a)

Rul e 26(a) involves the nandatory di scl osures which
parties nust provide each other in federal civil cases.
Subsection (a)(1)(B) is the section of Rule 26(a) pertinent to
plaintiffs request for sanctions. Because Rule 26 was anmended
in 2006, | nust apply the version of the Rule that existed at the
time of the alleged violation of the Rule. In 2004, Rule 26

(a)(1)(B) provided:

(a) Required Disclosures; Methods to Discover
Addi tional WMatter.

(1) Initial Disclosures. Except in
categories of proceedings specified in Rule
26(a)(1)(E), or to the extent otherw se
stipulated or directed by order, a party
must, w thout awaiting a discovery request,
provide to other parties:

* * *

(B) a copy of, or a description by
category and | ocation of, all docunents,
data conpil ations, and tangi bl e things
that are in the possession, custody, or
control of the party and that the
di sclosing party may use to support its
claims or defenses, unless solely for
i npeachnent .

As stated in Finding of Fact 26, on March 1, 2004
Attorney Sumrers sent a letter to the court attaching a series of
Decl arations which affirmatively represented to the court that
plaintiffs  allegations of bundling and downcodi ng | acked any

factual basis, and that those clains were “wi thout nerit”.
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Thereafter, defendant Keystone, through its counsel,
Attorney Summers, refused to produce the underlying docunents and
data conpil ati ons which supported the Declarations on a nunber of
frequently changing bases. Initially, Attorney Sunmers w thheld
t he underlying docunents and data conpil ati ons because they
al l egedly constituted |ay opinion. Next, Attorney Sumrers
wi thheld the information on the basis that it was expert opinion
and i mune fromdi scovery. Finally, Attorney Sumrers asserted
that the underlying information was privileged material pursuant
to either the attorney-client privilege or the attorney work

product doctri ne.

As noted by my colleague Senior United States District
Judge J. WlliamDbDitter, Jr., “It is not good faith for a | awer
to frustrate discovery requests...wth successive objections |ike
a magi ci an pul ling another and anot her and then still another

rabbit out of a hat.” Massachusetts School of Law at Andover,

Inc. v. Anmerican Bar Association, 914 F. Supp. 1172, 1177

(E.D. Pa. 1996).

Here, defendant Keystone and its counsel failed to
provide information that is clearly required by Rule 26(a)(1)(B)
to be produced automatically in discovery wthout a request for
it. The underlying docunments and the data conpilation to support
the Declarations were clearly utilized by defendant Keystone to

support a defense of failure to state a cl ai mupon which relief
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can be granted. The Rule provides that a copy of the docunent
must be provided if defendant nmay use it to support its defenses.
In this case, Keystone was not in the situation where it mght
use the material. It actually sent Declarations to nme which

stated that plaintiffs could not prove their clains.

Furt hernore, defendant Keystone withheld this
information for over 18 nonths and forced plaintiffs to spend
considerable tinme and effort to get the information produced.
Therefore, | conclude that defendant Keystone and Attorney
Summer s shoul d be sanctioned for this considerable discovery

vi ol ati on.

In addition, | conclude that a sanction is appropriate
agai nst def endant Keystone because its enpl oyees were actively
involved in the conpilation of the underlying materials and its
i n-house counsel knew of the materials and did nothing to make

sure that they were disclosed in discovery as required by
Rul e 26.

Accordingly, for the foregoing reasons, | conclude that
def endant Keystone's failure to disclose Rule 26(a) material,
aided by its counsel, violated Rule 37(c)(1). Therefore, both

Keystone and Attorney Summers are subject to sanctions.
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Violations of Rule 26(e)(1)

Def endant Keystone's failure to produce the underlying
mat eri al supporting its Declarations also violates Rule 26(e)(1).

Federal Rule of G vil Procedure 26(e)(1) provides as follows:

(e) Supplenentation of Disclosures and
Responses. A party who has nade a di scl osure under
subdi vision (a) or responded to a request for
di scovery with a disclosure or response is under a
duty to supplenent or correct the disclosure or
response to include information thereafter
acquired if ordered by the court or in the
foll ow ng circunstances:

(1) A party is under a duty to
suppl enment at appropriate intervals its
di scl osures under subdivision (a) if the
party learns that in sone material respect
the information disclosed is inconplete or
incorrect and if the additional or corrective
i nformati on has not otherw se been made known
to the other parties during the discovery
process or in witing. Wth respect to
testinony of an expert fromwhoma report is
requi red under subdivision (a)(2)(B) the duty
extends both to information contained in the
report and to information provided through a
deposition of the expert, and any additions
or other changes to this information shall be
di scl osed by the tine the party's disclosures
under Rule 26(a)(3) are due.

Def endant Keystone's initial disclosures pursuant to
Rul e 26(a) should have been sent to plaintiff sonetime prior to
my initial Rule 16 Conference in Decenber 2003. Thus, by not
provi ding the information underlying the Declarations until at

| east 18 nonths after the Declarations were sent to the court is
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certainly not an “appropriate interval” after sending plaintiffs

the Declarations but not the underlying docunents.

Accordingly, | find defendant Keystone and Attorney
Summers inaction in providing the underlying declarant materials

sanctionabl e under Rule 37(c) for violation of Rule 26(e)(1).

Violations of Rule 26(e)(2)

Rul e 26(e)(2) provides as foll ows:

(2) A party is under a duty seasonably to
anend a prior response to an interrogatory,
request for production, or request for adm ssion
if the party learns that the response is in sone
materi al respect inconplete or incorrect and if
the additional or corrective information has not
ot herwi se been nmade known to the other parties
during the discovery process or in witing.

Fed. R Giv.P. 26(e)(2).

Plaintiffs contend that defendants have not
“seasonabl y” anended their discovery responses because of the
anount of discovery that was produced years after it was
requested and the volume of discovery, previously requested, but
not produced until at the end of or after the class discovery

deadl i ne.

Def endants and respondents contend that they al
conplied in a tinmely manner with their continuing duty to provide

di scovery when it becane known to them and that they have not
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violated Rule 26 (e)(2). For the follow ng reasons, | disagree

w th defendants and respondents.

Initially, | reiterate my earlier conclusion that
nei ther Capital or H ghmark conducted a reasonabl e search for
audit docunents until just after the appointnment of Speci al
Di scovery Master Blune. | conclude that both the letter and
spirit of Rule 26(e)(2) are violated by a party who responds to a
di scovery request by stating that it is not in possession of any
responsi ve docunents when that party has not |ooked, and is not

| ooki ng, for the docunents.

On Novenber 22, 2005 Attorney Grifal co, counsel for
Hi ghmark, sent a letter to plaintiffs’ counsel indicating that
H ghmar k had not ever searched for responsive docunents to any
docunent request propounded by plaintiffs to which there was
either a general or specific defense objection. See Finding of
Fact 70. Plaintiffs requested appropriate discovery from

H ghmark as early as Fall 2003.

The Novenber 22, 2005 letter indicates that the
earliest that H ghmark may have searched for the docunents was
after Novenber 2005. The letter may explain why H ghmark did not
produce the docunents on tine, but it does not relieve H ghmark
fromits violation of the duty to seasonably anmend di scovery

responses. There were many docunents which H ghmark provi ded
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after the February 1, 2006 cl ass di scovery deadline that were

previously represented not to exist.

Def endant Keystone, through its counsel, announced at
the first neeting held by Discovery Master Blunme that it had just
recently | ocated docunents responsive to plaintiffs’ discovery
requests. The production by Keystone included over 20 boxes of
previ ously undi scl osed material. Mreover, Keystone' s production
over the preceding year had been paltry conpared to the over 20
boxes produced just after the first neeting with Speci al

Di scovery Master Bl une.

The nost egregious instance of |ate production involves
Keystone’s | ate production of clains data. Keystone clained for
years that it was unable to provide clainms data. During the sane
time that Keystone and its counsel were feigning an inability to
produce clainms data (which it owned according to the ASA
agreenent with Synertech), Keystone was using clains data for its
own sel f-serving purposes (i.e., the Declarations sent to the

court on March 1, 2005).

Keystone had the ability to provide clainms data through
its CAHRS system and by maki ng requests to Synertech (which it
did regularly in the ordinary course of business). The reason
t hat Keystone did not obtain the clains data sought by plaintiffs
from Synertech was the directive fromAttorney Summers to

Keyst one enpl oyees that no one was to obtain information in
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response to plaintiffs’ discovery requests from Synertech
Based upon the nonthly Reports from Special D scovery Master
Blune, to date, plaintiffs have still not received all the clains

data that they are clearly entitled to under the discovery rules.

This case is about clains processing. To deny
plaintiffs the data which Keystone owns is equivalent to denying
plaintiffs their day in court. Wthout this data it will be nore
difficult for plaintiffs to prove their clainms. | conclude that
this is exactly what defendant Keystone hoped to acconplish by

thwarting discovery in this case.

Additionally, | conclude that after Spring 2004 (the
ti me when Keystone enpl oyees becane Capital enpl oyees) Capital
Bl ue Cross could have, and should have, taken a greater role in
ensuring that its wholly-owned subsidiary Keystone was conpl yi ng
with its discovery obligations. Capital had its in-house
counsel, Attorney Wl fe working with Keystone’'s outside counsel
Attorney Summrers and ot her attorneys at the firm of Hangl ey,
Aronchick, Segal & Pudlin and with Capital’s outside counsel,
Attorneys Huyett and Bukowski. Thus, Capital was effectively
involved in this case both on its own behalf and on behal f of

Keyst one.

Accordi ngly, based upon the foregoing, | conclude that
al | defendants, Keystone, Capital and H ghmark, together with

their respective counsel, Attorneys Sunmers, Huyett, Bukowski and
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Grifalco are each subject to sanctions pursuant to Rule 37(c)
based upon violations of their continuing duty to seasonably

amend prior discovery responses.
Rul e 37(d) Sanctions

Plaintiff seeks additional sanctions pursuant to
Federal Rule of G vil Procedure 37(d) for defendants’ failure to
serve responses to interrogatories and requests for production of
docunents. Upon consideration of the sanctions already inposed
herei n agai nst defendants and their counsel pursuant to Rule
37(c), | conclude that additional sanctions for essentially the

same conduct woul d be cumul ati ve and unnecessary.

G vil Contenpt

Plaintiffs seek civil contenpt citations agai nst
defendants and their counsel for willful violation of four of ny
Orders and one Judge Rapoport Order. Specifically, plaintiffs
seek civil contenpt regarding ny Order and Opinion dated Apri
26, 2004; the August 25, 2005 appoi ntnent Order of Speci al
Di scovery Master Blune; the Septenber 23, 2005 scheduling Order;
and the Novenber 4, 2005 Order directing all parties to provide
privilege | ogs and docunents regardi ng any docunent a party

cl ai mred was privil eged.

To establish civil contenpt the court nust find that:

(1) a valid order existed; (2) respondents knew of the order; and
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(3) respondents di sobeyed the order. Roe v. Qperation Rescue,

919 F.2d 857, 871 (3d Cir. 1990). These "elenents nust be proven
by clear and convincing evidence, and anbiguities nust be

resolved in favor of the party charged with contenpt."”

John T. ex rel. Paul T. v. Delaware County Internediate Unit,

318 F. 3d 545, 552 (3d Cr. 2003).

In this case, | conclude that plaintiffs have failed to
prove by clear and convincing evidence that defendants have

violated any court Oder for which relief could be granted.

Specifically, | conclude that the August 25, 2005
appoi ntnent Order of Special Discovery Master Blune puts no
requi renents on any party. Rather, the Order sets forth the
reasons why appoi ntnent of a di scovery naster was appropriate,
the powers she was given and the duties she was charged with

per f or m ng.

Next, my Order and Opinion dated April 26, 2004 and
Judge Rapoport’s oral directive regarding relevancy do not state
clearly that defendants may not w thhold or redact discovery on
the basis of relevance, which is essentially what plaintiffs
state was “ordered”. Lack of relevance is a legitinmate basis for
objecting to discovery. Rule 26(b)(1) states that “[p]arties may
obtain discovery regarding any matter, not privileged, that is

relevant to the claimor defense of any party”.
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Wi | e Judge Rapoport and | agreed that defendants are
not the arbiters of relevance, they do have a right to object to
di scovery requests on the grounds that the requested discovery is
not relevant to the claimor defense of any party. However, as
noted in Rule 26(b)(1), relevant information need not be
adm ssible at trial if the discovery appears reasonably

calculated to lead to the discovery of adm ssi bl e evidence.

Judge Rapoport’s directive concerning rel evance was an
oral statenent made on the record in open court. It was not
contained in a witten court order. M discussion of rel evance
was contained in ny witten Qpinion dated April 26, 2004, not in
my Order attached to the Opinion. | believe that both Magistrate
Judge Rapoport’s verbal directive and nmy witten one satisfy the
first requirement of civil contenpt, that a valid order existed,

as articulated in Roe v. Operation Rescue, supra.

However, one could logically argue that a discussion in
an Qpinion is not “a valid Oder” and that an oral statenent in
court is not “a valid Order”. Because the elenents of civil
contenpt mnust be proven by clear and convincing evidence, and
because anbiguities nust be resolved in favor of the party

charged with contenpt, John T. ex rel. Pault., supra, plaintiffs

nmotion for civil contenpt based upon either nmy Order and Opi ni on
dated April 26, 2004 or Judge Rapoport’s oral directive regarding

rel evancy i s deni ed.
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Plaintiffs also seek a finding of civil contenpt based
upon ny Septenber 23, 2005 scheduling Order which established
February 1, 2006 as the cut-off for class discovery. Wiile it is
clear that there was a court Order in effect, defendants Keystone
and H ghmark knew of ny Order, and they violated nmy Order by
serving vol um nous discovery after the class discovery deadline,
plaintiffs received this information in time to utilize it for

t he cl ass heari ng.

Plaintiffs have not identified any specific harm (ot her
than less tinme to prepare for the class certification hearing)
for violation of this Order. This is particularly so because
plaintiffs prevailed at the class certification hearing.

Moreover, plaintiffs received the discovery in plenty of time for

t he schedul ed May 2008 trial of this case.

Accordingly, | deny plaintiff’s notion for civil

cont enpt based upon the Septenber 23, 2005 scheduling Order.

Finally, plaintiffs seek to hold defendants in civil
contenpt for their violation of ny Novenber 4, 2005 Order
directing all parties to provide privilege | ogs and docunents
regardi ng any docunent clainmed by a party to be privileged.

Plaintiffs raise two points regarding this Order.

Plaintiffs assert that defendants have violated this
Order and ny previous Orders directing all parties to provide
privilege | ogs because defendants have not included Bates nunbers
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on the privilege logs. This argunent fails because ny Orders
regardi ng production of privilege |logs do not contain a

requi renent to include a Bates nunber in the information which
directed all parties to provide. Hence, plaintiffs’ notion for
civil contenpt is denied regarding this aspect of the Novenber 4,

2005 Order.

Next, plaintiffs contend that defendants should be held
in contenpt for violating the Novenber 4, 2005 Order because they
di d not produce privilege |logs and docunents for all docunents
before the Novenber 14, 2005 deadline contained in that Order.
decline to specifically address this notion because the issue of
whet her defendants’ docunents are privileged is currently pendi ng

bef ore Special Discovery Master Bl une.

Mor eover, the specific issue of what to do with
docunents produced on privilege |logs after the Novenber 14, 2005
deadline is also before SDM Blunme. By ny Order dated August 16,
2007, at the specific request of Master Blune, | clarified how
she shoul d address all egedly privil eged docunents produced after

the deadline to produce all privileged docunents and a | og.
In ny August 16, 2007 Order | stated that:

[ The] Special Discovery Master may consider any
claimof privilege waived as to any docunent
produced with a privilege log after the

Novenber 14, 2005 deadline without prejudice to
Defendants citing a valid outstandi ng objection
that had been filed prior to the deadline, or
provi di ng an expl anation for why the docunent was
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not produced or did not exist prior to the
deadl i ne through no fault of any party.

Thus, | conclude that it is nore appropriate to permt
t he Special Discovery Master to decide the issue in the first
instance. |If she determnes that there is no valid reason for
not | ogging the docunents and producing the docunents to her, she
is free to find that the privilege was wai ved. That would be a
sufficient sanction for any |late production. |In the event that
defendants satisfy her in either of the ways outlined in ny
August 16, 2007 Order, then a sanction is not warranted, and

certainly not a finding of civil contenpt.

Sanctions Pursuant to 28 U . S.C. 8 1927 and Local Rule 83.6.1

Plaintiffs seek sanctions agai nst defense counsel
John S. Sunmers, Esquire, Sandra A. Grifalco, Esquire,
Jeffrey D. Bukowski, Esquire and Daniel B. Huyett, Esquire for
all eged violation of 28 U S.C. § 1927 and Rule 83.6.1 of the
Rules of G vil Procedure for the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of Pennsylvania for alleged bad faith

conduct in this case.

Def ense counsel all deny that they have engaged in any
bad faith conduct that would warrant sanctions under either
section 1927 or Local Rule 83.6.1. For the follow ng reasons,

di sagr ee.
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28 U.S.C. §8 1927 provides as foll ows:
§ 1927. Counsel’s liability for excessive costs

Any attorney or other person admtted to
conduct cases in any court of the United
States or any territory thereof who so
mul ti plies the proceedings in any case

unr easonably and vexatiously nmay be required
by the court to satisfy personally the excess
costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees
reasonably incurred because of such conduct.

Local Rule 83.6.1 (b) and (c) provide:

Rul e 83.6.1 Expediation of Court Business

(b) No attorney shall, w thout just cause,
fail to appear when that attorney’ s case is
before the Court on a call, notion, pretrial

or trial, or shall present to Court vexatious
notions or vexatious opposition to notions or
shall fail to prepare for presentation to the
Court, or shall otherwise so nultiply the
proceedings in a case as to increase

unr easonably and vexatiously the costs

t her eof .

(c) Any attorney who fails to conply with
section (a) or (b) may be disciplined as the
Court shall deem just.

As noted above, John S. Summers, Esquire engaged in a
course of conduct which constituted bad faith in this matter.
found his testinony to be evasive. | have extensively outlined

his conduct in this case above and incorporate it here.

| conclude that but for his actions, that the discovery
process woul d have proceeded in a much nore orderly and

expedi ti ous manner. Attorney Sumrers took the | ead in defending
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this case on behalf of all defendants. He was the one who took

charge during neetings before Special Di scovery Mster Bl une.

Attorney Summrers insisted that Keystone |acked the
ability to provide clains information when it clearly was able to
do so. He interfered with third-party productions by interfering
with plaintiffs’ attenpts to get data, documents and information
from Synertech and Tingley (the conpany that wote the clains
processi ng software used by Synertech) regarding clains made by
physi ci ans and how the clai ns processi ng conputer software

oper at ed.

Mor eover, Attorney Summers interposed a basel ess,
frivol ous objection in his discovery responses whi ch subverted
both the Federal Rules’ requirenent to provide a privilege |og
for allegedly privileged docunents, and this court’s clear Oders
t hat docunents alleged to be privileged nmust be entered on a
privilege log. Specifically, Attorney Summers crafted and
i nterposed a general objection to providing a privilege log for
any docunent created after he and his firmbegan their

representation of defendants Keystone and Pfister.

If not for the actions of Attorney Sumrers, there would
have been no need to appoint a Special D scovery Master in this
case. Thus, based upon the conduct outlined in the Findings of
Fact and di scussed herein, it is clear that Attorney Sunmmers

crossed the line from zeal ous advocacy to sanctionabl e conduct.
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| conclude that he acted in bad faith in order to nultiply these

proceedings to the detrinent of plaintiffs and their counsel.

Regardi ng the conduct of Attorney Grifalco, | also
found her testinony to be evasive. | adopt all the findings and
concl usi ons about her specific conduct discussed above in this
Opi nion. Wile her conduct was not as egregi ous as that of
Attorney Summers, Attorney Grifalco did her fair share of
i npedi ng di scovery in this case, which required plaintiffs to
expend countless hours in attenpting to obtain legitimte
di scovery. | conclude that she acted in bad faith in order to
mul ti ply these proceedings to the detrinment of plaintiffs and

their counsel

Wil e Attorneys Huyett and Bukowski, are the |east
cul pabl e of the defense counsel in this case, they still hel ped
to multiply these proceedings by their insistence on maintaining
their general objections, their initial failure to provide the
privilege logs required by the Rules, and by delaying this case
and not actively noving discovery along during the period of

civil suspense.

Bot h counsel denied doing any act to nultiply the
proceedi ngs here. | did not find that testinony credible.
Rat her, | conclude that Attorneys Huyett and Bukowski acted in
bad faith to nultiply these proceedings to the detrinent of

plaintiffs and their counsel.
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In addition, the nunerous notions filed in this matter
and the conduct of counsel in their argunents to the court
provi de significant evidence of their bad faith.3 Specifically,
def endants, through their counsel, sought reconsideration of
nearly every discovery Order entered by Judge Rapoport, a jurist
of over 25 years experience. Wile sonme of defendants’ argunments
were neritorious, | conclude others were advanced sinply to nake

work for plaintiffs’ counsel and to delay these proceedings.

Mor eover, defendants have either appeal ed or
di sregarded al nost every directive and reconmmendati on i ssued by
Speci al Di scovery Master Blume in the two years since her
appointnment in this matter. Counsel have all feigned
m sunder st andi ng of terns such as “di sengagenent”, “downcodi ng”
and “bundling” in order to delay providing rel evant discovery and
have fal sely represented their inability to produce information

and docunents.

In addition, there are numerous instances in the course
of this litigation where defendants, through their counsel, took
i nconsi stent positions on matters in this litigation to suit

their tactical purposes at the nonent. For exanpl e defense

st For concrete proof of the needless multiplication of litigation in
this matter, we need | ook no further than the fact that as of Septenber 28,
2007 there were 852 docket entries in this case. These two sanctions notions
al one generated thirty-six docket entries, seven of which were filings by
plaintiffs and twenty-nine of which were filings by defendants, their counsel,
and forner counsel. See Attachnment | to the Order dated
Sept ember 28, 2007 whi ch acconpani es this Opinion.

- | xxi x-



counsel argued to this court in their initial notion to dismss,
and in nunmerous responses to discovery requests, that this case
had nothing to do with the nmanaged care Multidistrict Litigation
(MDL) proceedi ngs before Chief Judge Federico AL Mreno in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of

Fl ori da.

After | concluded in nmy Septenber 2003 Order and
Opi nion denying the notion to dismss that there were sone
simlarities in the type of clains asserted in this case and in
the MDL proceedings (RICO violations alleging mail and wire fraud
as well as RICO conspiracy), defendants, in an effort to del ay
this action, requested to stay these proceedings to attenpt to
nove this case to Florida. However, when a stay was deni ed by
me, and the MDL panel deni ed defendants’ request to transfer this
case to Florida, defendants then all objected to plaintiffs’
di scovery requests seeking discovery about the Florida litigation

as irrelevant to these proceedi ngs.

Accordingly, for all the reasons stated above, |
concl ude that defense counsel all violated both 28 U . S.C. § 1927

and Local Rule 83.6.1.

| nherent Power to Sanction

Plaintiffs seeks sanctions under this court’s inherent
power to sanction. However, where the Rules of Cvil Procedure
or statutes are "up to the task"” they should be used in place of
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a court's inherent sanction power. Klein v. Stahl, 185 F. 3d 98

(3d Cr. 1999). In this case, | conclude that the sanctions I
have al ready inposed as discussed in this Opinion are sufficient
and that nothing further will be acconplished by invoking this
court’s inherent authority to further sanction defendants or

their counsel

| ndi vi dual Def endant s

As noted in Finding of Fact 93, there is no evidence in
the record indicating that individual defendants James M Mead,
John S. Brouse or Joseph Pfister had any know edge of, or
participation in, the production of any discovery not directly
addressed to each of them individually. Moreover, there is no
evi dence to support any sanction agai nst any of the individual

def endant s.

CONCLUSI ON

For all the foregoing reasons, | concl ude that
Def endant s Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc., Capital Blue
Cross, Highmark, Inc. and their respective counsel, including
John S. Sunmers, Esquire, the law firm of Hangl ey, Aronchi ck,
Segal & Pudlin, Jeffrey D. Bukowski, Esquire, Daniel B. Huyett,
Esquire, the law firmof Stevens & Lee, P.C. ,Sandra A. Grifalco,

Esquire and the law firm of Stradl ey, Ronon, Stevens & Young are
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subject to the sanctions set forth in the Summary of Deci sion

section of this Opinion.
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APPENDI X |

to the Septenber 28, 2007 sanctions Opinion

in Gider v. Keystone Heath Plan Central, Inc.

Cvil Action No. 2001-CV-05641

Text of Pertinent Portions of Fed. R Gv.P. 37

Rul e 37. Failure to Make Discl osures or Cooperate in D scovery;

Sancti ons

(a) Mdtion for Oder Conmpelling Disclosure or Discovery. A party, upon
reasonabl e notice to other parties and all persons affected thereby, may apply

for an order conpelling disclosure or discovery as foll ows:

(1) Appropriate Court. An application for an order to a party
shall be made to the court in which the action is pending. An
application for an order to a person who is not a party shall be made to

the court in the district where the discovery is being, or is to be, taken

(2) Motion.

(A) If aparty fails to nake a disclosure required by Rule
26(a), any other party may nove to conpel disclosure and for
appropriate sanctions. The notion nust include a certification
that the novant has in good faith conferred or attenpted to confer
with the party not making the disclosure in an effort to secure

t he di scl osure w thout court action

(B) If a deponent fails to answer a question propounded or

subm tted under Rules 30 or 31, or a corporation or other entity



fails to make a designation under Rule 30(b)(6) or 31(a), or a
party fails to answer an interrogatory subnmtted under Rule 33, or
if a party, in response to a request for inspection submtted
under Rule 34, fails to respond that inspection will be permtted
as requested or fails to pernmt inspection as requested, the

di scovering party may nove for an order conpelling answer, or a
designation, or an order conpelling inspection in accordance with
the request. The notion nust include a certification that the
nmovant has in good faith conferred or attenpted to confer with the
person or party failing to make the discovery in an effort to
secure the information or material w thout court action. \Wen
taki ng a deposition on oral exam nation, the proponent of the
guestion may conplete or adjourn the exam nation before applying

for an order.

(3) Evasive or Inconplete Disclosure, Answer, or Response. For
pur poses of this subdivision an evasive or inconplete disclosure,
answer, or response is to be treated as a failure to disclose, answer,

or respond.

(4) Expenses and Sancti ons.

(A If the notion is granted or if the disclosure or
requested di scovery is provided after the notion was filed, the
court shall, after affording an opportunity to be heard, require
the party or deponent whose conduct necessitated the notion or the
party or attorney advising such conduct or both of themto pay to
the noving party the reasonabl e expenses incurred in naking the
notion, including attorney's fees, unless the court finds that the
notion was filed without the nmovant's first naking a good faith

effort to obtain the disclosure or discovery wi thout court action
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or that the opposing party's nondi sclosure, response, or objection
was substantially justified, or that other circunstances nake an

award of expenses unjust.

(B) If the notion is denied, the court may enter any
protective order authorized under Rule 26(c) and shall, after
af fording an opportunity to be heard, require the noving party or
the attorney filing the notion or both of themto pay to the party
or deponent who opposed the notion the reasonabl e expenses
incurred in opposing the notion, including attorney's fees, unless
the court finds that the maki ng of the notion was substantially

justified or that other circunstances make an award of expenses unjust.

(© If the notion is granted in part and denied in part,
the court may enter any protective order authorized under Rule
26(c) and may, after affording an opportunity to be heard,
apportion the reasonabl e expenses incurred in relation to the

noti on anong the parties and persons in a just nanner.

(b) Failure to conply with order

(2) Sanctions by Court in Wich Action Is Pending. If a party or
an officer, director, or nanagi ng agent of a party or a person
desi gnated under Rule 30(b)(6) or 31(a) to testify on behalf of a party
fails to obey an order to provide or permt discovery, including an
order made under subdivision (a) of this rule or Rule 35, or if a party

fails to obey an order entered under Rule 26(f), the court in which the
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action is pending may nake such orders in regard to the failure as are

just, and anmong others the follow ng:

(A) An order that the natters regardi ng which the order was
made or any ot her designated facts shall be taken to be
establ i shed for the purposes of the action in accordance with the

claimof the party obtaining the order;

(B) An order refusing to allow the di sobedient party to
support or oppose designated clains or defenses, or prohibiting

that party fromintroduci ng designated matters in evidence;

(© An order striking out pleadings or parts thereof, or
staying further proceedings until the order is obeyed, or
di sm ssing the action or proceeding or any part thereof, or

rendering a judgnment by default against the di sobedient party;

(D) Inlieu of any of the foregoing orders or in addition

thereto, an order treating as a contenpt of court the failure to

obey any orders except an order to submit to a physical or nental exam nation;

(E) Where a party has failed to conply with an order under
Rul e 35(a) requiring that party to produce another for
exam nation, such orders as are listed in paragraphs (A, (B), and
(O of this subdivision, unless the party failing to conply shows

that that party is unable to produce such person for exani nation.

In Iieu of any of the foregoing orders or in addition

thereto, the court shall require the party failing to obey the
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order or the attorney advising that party or both to pay the
reasonabl e expenses, including attorney's fees, caused by the
failure, unless the court finds that the failure was substantially

justified or that other circunstances make an award of expenses unjust.
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Admi t.

(c) Failure to Disclose; False or Msleading Disclosure; Refusal to

(1) A party that without substantial justification fails to
di sclose information required by Rule 26(a) or 26(e)(1), or to anend a
prior response to discovery as required by Rule 26(e)(2), is not, unless
such failure is harmess, permtted to use as evidence at a trial, at a
hearing, or on a notion any witness or information not so disclosed. In
addition to or in lieu of this sanction, the court, on notion and after
af fordi ng an opportunity to be heard, nay inpose other appropriate
sanctions. In addition to requiring paynent of reasonabl e expenses,
i ncluding attorney's fees, caused by the failure, these sanctions may
i ncl ude any of the actions authorized under Rule 37(b)(2)(A), (B), and
(© and may include informing the jury of the failure to nake the

di scl osure.

(2) If a party fails to adnit the genui neness of any docunment or
the truth of any matter as requested under Rule 36, and if the party
requesting the adm ssions thereafter proves the genui neness of the
docunent or the truth of the matter, the requesting party may apply to
the court for an order requiring the other party to pay the reasonable
expenses incurred in making that proof, including reasonable attorney's
fees. The court shall nake the order unless it finds that (A) the
request was held objectionable pursuant to Rule 36(a), or (B) the
adm ssi on sought was of no substantial inportance, or (C) the party
failing to admt had reasonable ground to believe that the party m ght
prevail on the matter, or (D) there was other good reason for the

failure to admt.
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ATTACHVENT |

to the Septenber 28, 2007 sanctions Order in

Gider v. Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc.

Cvil Action No. 2001-CV-05641
in the United States District Court

for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania

Fornmal Subm ssions of the Parties and Respondents

1. Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for Findings of
Cont enpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rul es of
Cvil Procedure and Other Provisions of Law, which notion was

filed on March 22, 2006.

2. Plaintiffs’ Menorandum of Law in Support of Plaintiffs’
Motion for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt Under Rules 11
26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, which

menor andum was filed on March 22, 2007.

3. Answer of Defendants Capital Blue Cross and Janes M

Mead to Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for Findings of
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Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rul es of
Civil Procedure and & her Provisions of Law, which answer was

filed on April 10, 2006.

4. Legal Menorandumin Support of Capital Defendants’
Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ March 22, 2006 Mtion for Sanctions and
for Findings of Contenpt, which nenorandumwas filed on behal f of
defendants Capital Blue Cross and Janes M Mead on April 10,

2006.

5. Response in Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ Mtion for
Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and
37 of the Federal Rules of G vil Procedure and O her Provisions
of Law, which response was filed on behalf of defendants

H ghmark, Inc. and John S. Brouse on April 10, 2006.

6. Defendants Keystone Health Plan Central, Joseph Pfister
and Their Counsels’ Answer to Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions
and for Findings of Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Ot her Provisions of Law,

whi ch answer was filed on April 10, 2006.

7. Legal Menorandum in Support of Keystone Defendants’
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Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ March 22, 2006 Mtion for Sanctions and
for Findings of Contenpt, which nenorandumwas filed on behalf of
def endants Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc. and Joseph Pfister

on April 10, 2007.

8. Plaintiff’s Conbined Motion and Menorandum for Sanctions
and Findings of Contenpt Under Rule 37 of the Federal Rul es of
Cvil Procedure and Ot her Provisions of Law for Defendants’

Fl agrant Di sobedi ence of This Court’s April 26, 2004 Order
Prohi biting the Redaction of Di scovery Docunents, which conbined

nmoti on and nmenor andum was fil ed on Decenber 19, 2006.

9. Response of Defendants H ghmark Inc. and John S. Brouse
in Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Conbined Mdtion and Menorandum for
Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt Under Rule 37 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Ot her Provisions of Law for
Def endants’ Fl agrant Di sobedi ence of This Court’s April 26, 2004
Order Prohibiting the Redaction of Discovery Docunents, which

response was filed on January 2, 2007.

10. Opposition of Capital and Keystone Defendants to
Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt,
whi ch opposition was filed on behalf of defendants Capital Bl ue

Cross, Janes M Mead, Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc. and
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Joseph Pfister on January 2, 2007.

11. Legal Menorandumin Support of Capital and Keystone
Def endants’ Qpposition to Plaintiffs Decenber 19, 2006 Mtion
for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt, which nenorandum was
filed on behal f of defendants Capital Blue Cross, Janes M Mead,
Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc. and Joseph Pfister on

January 2, 2007.

12. Plaintiffs’ Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons
of Law in Support of Plaintiffs’ Mtions for Sanctions and for
Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure and O her Provisions of Law, which
proposed findings of fact and conclusions of aw were filed on

January 10, 2007.

13. Plaintiffs’ Menorandum of Law in Support of Plaintiffs’
Proposed Fi ndi ngs of Fact and Conclusions of Law with Respect to
Plaintiffs’ Mtions for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt
Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal Rules of G vil
Procedure and Ot her Provisions of Law, which nenorandum was filed

on January 10, 2007.
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14. Proposed Fi ndi ngs of Fact and Concl usions of Law, filed
on behalf of former counsel for defendant Keystone Health Pl an
Central, Inc., Hangley Aronchick Segal & Pudlin, and its current

and former attorneys on January 10, 2007.

15. Menorandum of Law of Hangl ey Aronchick Segal & Pudlin
in Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Mtion for Sanctions and for
Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt Under Rules 11, 26(g) and 37 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure and O her Provisions of Law, which

menor andum was filed on January 10, 2007.

16. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law of
Respondents Stevens & Lee, P.C. and Attorneys Daniel B. Huyett
and Jeffrey D. Bukowski in Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ Mtions for
Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt (DKT. 512, 595), which
proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law was filed on

January 10, 2007.

17. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law of
Keyst one Defendants in Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Mrch 22, 2006
Motion for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt, which proposed
findings of fact and conclusions of |Iaw was filed on behal f of
Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc. and Joseph Pfister on
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January 10, 2007.

18. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law of
Capital and Keystone Defendants in Qpposition to Plaintiffs’
Decenber 19, 2006 Mdtion for Sanctions and for Findings of
Cont enpt, which proposed findings of fact and concl usions of |aw
was filed on behalf of defendants Keystone Health Plan Central,
Inc., Capital Blue Cross, Janes M Mead and Joseph Pfister on

January 10, 2007.

19. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law of
Capital Defendants in Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ March 22, 2006
Motion for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt, which proposed
findings of fact and conclusions of |Iaw was filed on behal f of
def endants Capital Blue Cross and Janes M Mead on January 10,

2007.

20. Legal Menorandumin Support of Capital Defendants’
Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ March 22, 2006 Mtion for Sanctions and
for Findings of Contenpt, which nenorandumwas filed on behal f of
defendants Capital Blue Cross and Janes M Mead on January 10,

2007.
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21. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law of
Def endants H ghnmark, Inc. and John S. Brouse in Qpposition to
Plaintiffs’ Mtions for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt,
whi ch proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law was filed

January 10, 2007.

22. Menorandum of Law of Defendants Hi ghmark Inc. and
John S. Brouse in Support of Their Proposed Findings of Fact and
Concl usions of Law in Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ Mtions for
Sanctions and Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt, which nmenorandum was fil ed

January 10, 2007.

23. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usions of Law of
Capital and Keystone Defendants in Qpposition to Plaintiffs’
Decenber 19, 2006 Mdtion for Sanctions and for Findings of
Cont enpt, which proposed findings of fact and concl usions of |aw
was filed on behalf of defendants Keystone Health Plan Central,
Inc., Capital Blue Cross, Janes M Mead and Joseph Pfister on

January 10, 2007.

24. Legal Menorandumin Support of Keystone Defendants’
Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ March 22, 2006 Mtion for Sanctions and
for Findings of Contenpt, which nenorandumwas filed on behalf of
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def endants Keystone Health Plan Central, Inc. and Joseph Pfister

on January 10, 2007.

25. Proposed Findings of Fact on Behal f of Hangl ey,
Aronchi ck, Segal & Pudlin, which proposed findings of fact was

filed on August 28, 2007.

26. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law of
Janes M Mead in Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ March 22, 2006 and
Decenber 19, 2006 Mdtions for Sanctions and for Findings of
Cont enpt, which proposed findings of fact and concl usi ons of | aw

was filed on August 28, 2007.

27. Plaintiffs’ Menorandum of Law in Support of Plaintiffs
Proposed Fi ndi ngs of Fact and Concl usions of Law in Connection
Wth Their Sanctions Mtions, which nmenorandumwas filed

August 28, 2007.

28. Plaintiffs’ Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons
of Law in Support of Plaintiffs’ Mtions for Sanctions, which
proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law was filed on

August 28, 2007.
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29. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law of
Keyst one Defendants in Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Mrch 22, 2006
and Decenber 19, 2006 Mdtions for Sanctions and for Findings of
Cont enpt, which proposed findings of fact and concl usi ons of | aw
was filed on behalf of defendants Keystone Health Plan Central,

Inc. and Joseph Pfister on August 28, 2007.

30. Brief of Keystone Defendants in Support of Findings of
Fact and Conclusions of Law on Plaintiffs’ Sanctions Mtions,
which brief was filed on behal f of defendants Keystone Health

Plan Central, Inc. and Joseph Pfister on August 28, 2007.

31. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law of
Capital Blue Cross in Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ March 22, 2006
and Decenber 22, 2006 Mdtions for Sanctions and for Findings of
Cont enpt, which proposed findings of fact and concl usions of |aw

was filed on August 28, 2007.

32. Brief of Capital Blue Cross in Support of Findings of
Fact and Concl usions of Law on Plaintiffs’ Sanctions Mtions,

which brief was filed on August 28, 2007.
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33. Menorandum of Law of Respondent Stradley, Ronon,
Stevens & Young, LLP in Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Mtions for
Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt, which nmenorandum was

filed on August 28, 2007.

34. Post-Hearing Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons
of Law of Respondents Stevens & Lee, P.C. and Attorneys Daniel B
Huyett and Jeffrey D. Bukowski in Opposition to Plaintiffs’
Motion for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt (DKT. 512),
whi ch proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law was filed

August 28, 2007.

35. Joint Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law
of Defendants Hi ghmark, Inc. and John S. Brouse and Respondent
Stradl ey, Ronon, Stevens & Young, LLP in Opposition to
Plaintiffs’ Mtions for Sanctions and for Findings of Contenpt,
whi ch joint proposed findings of fact and concl usi ons of | aw was

filed on August 28, 2007.

36. Menorandum of Law of Defendants Hi ghmark Inc. and
John S. Brouse in Support of Their Proposed Findings of Fact and
Concl usions of Law in Qpposition to Plaintiffs’ Mtions for
Sanctions and Fi ndi ngs of Contenpt, which nmenorandum was fil ed

August 28, 2007.
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